ANTERIS ‘e
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APPENDIX 4E AND PRELIMINARY FINAL REPORT

Anteris Technologies Ltd (ASX: AVR) (Anteris or the Company) releases its Appendix 4E
Preliminary final report and commentary for the year ended 31 December 2023.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY:

e Revenue from ordinary activities for the year ended 31 December 2023 was $4.1M
generated from the sale of tissue products.

e The Company recognised other income totalling $2.9M, including $1.1M in government
grants related to research and development activities.

e Net loss after tax was $68.9M, primarily reflecting increased research and development
and clinical ftrial expenditure relating to the Group’s Transcatheter Aortic Valve
Replacement program.

e Year-end cash balance at 31 December 2023 was $30.8M.

e Net cash inflow (pre-movements in exchange rates) of $17.6M for the year reflecting net
cash inflows of $73.0M from share placements and multiple option conversions, offset by
net cash outflows from operating activities of $51.4M and net cash outflows from investing
activities of $3.9M primarily relating to equipment acquisitions.

ENDS

About Anteris Technologies Ltd (ASX: AVR)

Anteris Technologies Ltd (ASX: AVR) is a structural heart company committed to designing,
developing, and commercialising innovative medical devices. Founded in Australia, with a
significant presence in Minneapolis, USA (a MedTech hub), Anteris is science-driven, with an
experienced team of multidisciplinary professionals delivering transformative solutions to structural
heart disease patients.

The Company’s lead product, DurAVR™, is a transcatheter heart valve (THV) for treating aortic
stenosis. DurAVR™ THV was designed in partnership with the world’s leading interventional
cardiologists and cardiac surgeons. It is the first transcatheter aortic valve replacement (TAVR) to
use a single piece of bioengineered tissue. This biomimetic valve is uniquely shaped to mimic the
performance of a healthy human aortic valve.

DurAVR™ THV is made using ADAPT® tissue, Anteris’ patented anti-calcification tissue
technology. ADAPT® tissue has been used clinically for over 10 years and distributed for use in
over 50,000 patients worldwide.
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The ComASUR™ Delivery System was designed to provide controlled deployment and accurate
placement of the DurAVR™ THYV with balloon-expandable delivery, allowing precise alignment with
the heart’s native commissures to achieve optimal valve positioning.

Anteris Technologies is set to revolutionise the structural heart market by delivering clinically
superior solutions for significant unmet clinical needs.

Authorisation and Additional information

This announcement was authorised by the Board of Directors.

For more information:
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Managing Director Anteris Technologies Ltd
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Appendix 4E (Rule 4.33)

Name of entity

Anteris Technologies Ltd

ABN Financial year ended (“current period”)

35088 221 078 31 December 2023

RESULTS FOR ANNOUNCEMENT TO THE MARKET

12 months to 12 months to
31 December 31 December

2023 2022 Change Change
$’000 $’000 $’000 %
Revenues from ordinary activities 4,111 4,590 (479) (10%)
Loss from ordinary activities after tax (68,893) (44,340) (24,553) (55%)
Loss for the period attributable to members (67,333) (44,340) (22,993) (52%)
Dividends Amount per Franked
security amount

per security

Final dividend proposed NIL ¢ NIL ¢

Interim dividend NIL ¢ NIL ¢

31 December 31 December
2023 2022

Net Tangible Asset Backing * $1.53 $0.89

* Net Tangible Assets is calculated as net assets (including Right-of-Use assets) less intangible assets.

Refer to the Directors’ report for a review of operations.

On 18 April 2023, the Group acquired 30% of the shares of v2vmedtech, inc.
Since acquisition date, the entity has been treated as a controlled entity for accounting purposes.

Audit

The consolidated annual financial statements on which this report is based have been audited by KPMG. The Independent
Auditor’s opinion is not modified but includes an Emphasis of Matter that a material uncertainty exists that may cast doubt on
the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern.




ANTERIS

ANTERIS TECHNOLOGIES LTD
ABN 35088 221 078

FINANCIAL REPORT
31 December 2023



CORPORATE DIRECTORY

Directors

John Seaberg - Chair

Wayne Paterson - Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director
Stephen Denaro - Non-Executive Director and Company Secretary
Dr Wenyi Gu - Non-Executive Director

Company Secretary

Stephen Denaro

Company and Registered Office

Toowong Tower

Suite 302, Level 3, 9 Sherwood Rd
Toowong, Queensland 4066
Telephone: +61 1300 550 310
Facsimile: +61 1300 972 437
Website: www.anteristech.com
Email: info.au@anteristech.com

Auditors

KPMG
Heritage Lanes, Level 11, 80 Ann Street
Brisbane, Queensland 4000

Solicitors

Jones Day

Level 31, Riverside Centre
123 Eagle Street

Brisbane, Queensland 4000

Bankers

ANZ
77 St Georges Terrace
Perth, Western Australia 6000

Share Registry

Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited
Level 1, 200 Mary Street
Brisbane, Queensland 4000

: 1300 555 159 (within Australia)
1 +61 3 9415 4062 (outside Australia)
: 1800 783 447 (within Australia)
1 +61 3 9473 2555 (outside Australia)

m m - -

www-au.computershare.com/Investor

Securities Exchange Listing

ASX code: AVR (ordinary shares)
American Depository Receipt (ADR) program code: ANTTY



ANTERIS TECHNOLOGIES LTD

FINANCIAL REPORT
CONTENTS

Directors’ Report

Auditor’s Independence Declaration

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Directors’ Declaration

Independent Auditor’s Report

19
21
22
23
24
25
26
66
67



ANTERIS TECHNOLOGIES LTD
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Your Directors present their report on Anteris Technologies Ltd (“the Company” or “Anteris”) and the consolidated entity (referred to
hereafter as the Group) for the year ended 31 December 2023.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company in office during the year ended 31 December 2023 and until the date of this report are as follows.
. John Seaberg
. Wayne Paterson
. Stephen Denaro
3 Dr Wenyi Gu

Directors were in office for the entire year unless otherwise stated.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
During the year, the Group’s principal activities were:

. Continued research and development (R&D) of our Structural Heart products, chiefly DurAVR™ THV (Transcatheter Heart
Valve) for the treatment of aortic stenosis and its COmASUR™ delivery system which allows accurate valve placement. The
DurAVR™ THV is a single piece, native-shaped biomimetic design built to mimic the performance of a healthy aortic valve.
Combined with the ADAPT® technology the DurAVR™ THV’s unique design delivers better haemodynamic performance
through unique properties critical to longer lasting valves;

. The co-development with v2vmedtech, inc, of an innovative heart valve repair device for the minimally invasive treatment of
mitral and tricuspid valve regurgitation (also known as a leaky valve); and

. The manufacture and sale of proprietary ADAPT® regenerative tissue products globally.

OPERATING RESULT

The operating result for the year was as follows:

2023 2022
$ $
Revenue 4,111,082 4,590,047
Loss after income tax (68,893,255) (44,340,161)

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid during the year and the Board did not recommend a dividend payment.

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Group Overview

The Group took a major step towards commercialisation of its flagship product, the DurAVR™ THV, during 2023 with the successful
completion of the 15-patient Early Feasibility Study (EFS) which was underpinned by the 30-day data readout of the 15-patient Early
Feasibility Study (EFS). It demonstrated the superior effectiveness and safety profile of the DurAVR™ THV in treating severe aortic
stenosis.

The clinical evidence from an additional three Valve-in-Valve (ViV) procedures reinforced DurAVR™ THV’s wider application as the
best potential treatment for this significant and growing subset of the aortic valve replacement market.

The Group expanded its potential product offering with an initial 30% stake in v2vmedtech, inc, to develop minimally invasive
treatment of mitral and tricuspid valve regurgitation.

In keeping with its commercialisation strategy, the Group spent considerable time and resources on financing its activities and
promoting its clinical achievements in TAVR (trans aortic valve replacement) to industry and practitioners in the TAVI (trans aortic
valve intervention) space.



ANTERIS TECHNOLOGIES LTD
DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Review of Operations

The primary focus of 2023 for the Group was the US Early Feasibility Study of its DurAVR™ THV for treating severe aortic stenosis. After
gaining initial approval in November 2022, the FDA gave an expanded approval in early February 2023 for the 15-patient study. The
expanded approval removed previous conditions placed on the study, allowing acceleration of certain activities related to study
execution. Specifically, the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services were able to finalise the reimbursement level under the Category
B designation previously granted by the FDA. It meant the Group was able to get coverage for the device and routine care and services
in the trial, helping to defray costs.

The expanded approval closely followed the publication of 12-month follow-up data in January for the first five patients implanted in
the First-in-Human Study (FiH) with DurAVR™ THV. These results confirmed DurAVR™ THV restoring normal, pre-disease blood flow,
producing large effective orifice areas enabling the valve to open widely with low mean pressure gradients. Valve function was stable
with an excellent post-operative safety profile.

Seven more patients suffering severe aortic stenosis were treated by the Anteris team again led by CMO Dr Chris Meduri, at the Thilisi
Heart and Vascular Clinic (Thilisi, Georgia) in May with post operative results consistent with previous patients. There was 100%
procedural success with no device-related complications.

The EFS ran from 9 August to 17 October 2023 with 30-day post procedure results published on 21 November for 12 of the 15 patients.
The 30-day haemodynamic results reported:

. Mean Effective Orifice Area (EOA) = 2.13 cm2

. Mean Pressure Gradient (MPG) = 7.9 mmHg

. Doppler Velocity Index (DVI) = 0.62

. No paravalvular leaks (PVL) were observed at 30-day follow-up

The 30-day haemodynamic results were consistent with those reported at patient discharge with no significant change in EOA or MPG
values. Additionally, the trial showed excellent safety data with no incidence of stroke, myocardial infarction, life-threatening bleeds,
or all-cause mortality.

The first ViV procedure was performed under Health Canada’s Special Access Program (SAP) in July and the second in August. By the
year’s end, three ViV procedures were successfully done under the SAP with outstanding patient outcomes. Too, eight more patients
with severe aortic stenosis were treated with DurAVR™ THV in December at the Tbilisi Heart and Vascular Clinic.

Another three ViV patients were done under Health Canada’s SAP in early January 2024, taking the total number of patients successfully
treated with the DurAVR™ THYV to 50 since the first in human done at the Tbilisi Heart and Vascular Clinic in November 2021.

All clinical data, incidentally, superior to commercially available valves across all measures, is necessary to support the Group’s
application this year in pursuit of FDA approval for a pivotal trial. The pivotal trial is required to gain regulatory clearance to market the
DurAVR™ THV system in the US.

Also, important to the clinical trial programs was the Group’s newly expanded production facility in Maple Grove, Minnesota USA. The
FDA gave its approval for the expanded facility in late March 2023. It allowed for expanded in-house production capabilities, leading to
significant cost savings and increased production efficiency in producing DurAVR™ THVs. The expanded Maple Grove facility
complements existing tissue engineering capabilities in Malaga, Perth, where the Group’s patented ADAPT® anti-calcification
technology is manufactured, whilst expanding overall production capacity.

The Group fortified its broad IP protection of the DurAVR™ THV with the US Patent and Trademark Office (PTO) issuing a utility patent,
#11,622,853 expiring 30 September 2042, further confirming the Group has developed a differentiated heart valve technology through
its innovative single-piece, shaped-tissue design. A month later, the US PTO issued another utility patent, #11,648,107 expiring 12
September 2038, to the Group for its DurAVR™ THV. This patent covered new claims additive to the existing IP coverage for DurAVR™
THV. The patents, granted on 12 April 2023 and 17 May 2023, strengthens the Group’s competitive position in the TAVR field.

To broaden the Group’s asset base, it entered an agreement with v2vmedtech, inc. to develop an innovative heart valve repair device
for the minimally invasive treatment of mitral and tricuspid valve regurgitation (commonly, a leaky valve) — a market expected to be
SA4.1 billion by 2028. The device is designed to address unmet needs within the mitral and tricuspid valve repair space. The technology
complements the Group’s portfolio. The mitral and tricuspid valve repair markets are underpenetrated with few competitors and many
patients do not receive treatment due to current technology limitations.

Essential to its commercialisation strategy, the Group was active on the conference circuit presenting its outstanding clinical results
throughout the year and as well road shows to institutional and industry participants in the TAVR space. CEO, Wayne Paterson was at
the forefront, well supported by Anteris CMO, Dr Chris Meduri and members of the Anteris Advisory Board, all clinicians being key
opinion leaders in the field.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Review of Operations (continued)

On 9 August 2023, a sponsored Level 1 American Depository Receipt (ADR) program in the United States was established, trading on
the OTC market (Ticker symbol: ANTTY). The ADR program was set up to improve US investor access to Anteris ordinary shares.
Deutsche Bank was appointed as the Depositary Bank for the ADR program.

Considerable management time and resources were devoted to financing activities. Gross proceeds of $68.3 million were raised
during the year with the issue of new shares to professional and institutional investors. Top 20 shareholder members supported both
issues occurring in February and late October 2023. The second placement was settled in November 2023, raising $33.3 million.

Profit and Loss Review

Revenues from ordinary activities for the year ended 31 December 2023 were $4,111,082 decreasing from $4,590,047 in 2022
reflecting lower volumes of sales.

The Group recognised other income totalling $2,916,652 (2022: $2,136,095), including $1,073,301 in Research and Development Tax
Incentives (2022: $1,802,793).

The Group loss, after income tax provisions, was $68,893,255 (2022: $44,340,161) primarily reflecting clinical studies expenditure and
increased research and development expenditure relating to the Group’s TAVR program.

Financial Position

The closing cash position for the year was $30,831,932 (2022: $13,805,328). Net working capital (current assets minus current liabilities)
at 31 December 2023 was $22,061,374.

Cash Flow
The net cash inflow during the year was $17,615,334 (2022: $8,991,659 outflow) reflecting:

. Net cash outflow from operating activities of $51,432,580 (2022: $38,995,191), as Anteris continues to invest in research and
development and the growth of the business to support product development and the process of seeking regulatory approvals
to bring the Group’s DurAVR™ THV technology to market.

. Net cash outflow from investing activities of $3,902,238 (2022: $1,360,290) including equipment acquisitions primarily for the
expansion of facilities in the United States; plus costs relating to the acquisition of v2vmedtech, inc. including related intangibles.

. Net cash inflow from financing activities was $72,950,152 (2022: $31,363,822) including gross proceeds of $68,283,016 from
share placements in February and November 2023, plus $10,649,062 from multiple option conversions throughout the year;
partly offset by the payment of share capital issue transaction costs, repayment of supplier financing borrowings related to the
Group’s insurance, and payment of lease liabilities primarily related to property.

Operating segments

Management has determined that the activities of the business as reviewed by the Chief Executive Officer are one segment, being
the development and commercialisation of the ADAPT® platform technology. This is focused on the DurAVR™ Transcatheter Heart
Valve System.

Material Business Risks

The Group has identified the below specific risks which could impact upon its prospects.

Adverse patient event and product liability claims

There is a risk that a patient may have an adverse event arising from the failure of an Anteris product leading to a product liability claim
or investigation against Anteris. Anteris monitors these risks and has implemented quality control procedures and quality assurance
testing to reduce the risk of such claims. However, these may not be adequate and a product liability claim, where there was insufficient
insurance coverage, could have a material adverse effect on Anteris’ financial condition and reputation.

Inability to develop and commercialise new products

Based on its scientifically and commercially validated ADAPT® platform, Anteris has numerous ongoing Research and Development
projects as well as product innovations led by the TAVR program in multibillion-dollar markets. The Group has recently demonstrated
significant progress in the development of DurAVR™ and key milestones such as first-in-human and completing the enrolment of the
Early Feasibility Study. However, there remains a risk that these projects may fail, be delayed or may not prove commercially viable.
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OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Material Business Risks (continued)

If we do not obtain the necessary regulatory approvals, then we would be unable to commercialise our products

The clinical development, manufacturing, sales and marketing of our products are subject to extensive regulation by regulatory
authorities. We conduct rigorous preclinical studies and clinical trials to demonstrate the safety and efficacy in humans of our products
in order to obtain regulatory approval for the sale of our products. Unfavourable or inconsistent clinical data from current or future
clinical trials or procedures conducted by us or third parties, or perceptions regarding this clinical data, could adversely affect our ability
to obtain necessary approvals.

Furthermore, from time to time, changes to the applicable legislation, regulations or policies may be introduced that change these
review and approval processes for our products. If we are unable to obtain regulatory approvals, we will not be able to commercialise
and generate revenue from our products. Even if we receive regulatory approval for any of our products, our profitability will depend
on our ability to commercialise and generate revenues from their sale or the licensing of our technology.

Inability to protect Intellectual property

Anteris’ success will depend on its ability to obtain adequate and valid patent protection, maintain trade secret protections and operate
without infringing the proprietary rights of third parties or having third parties circumvent Anteris’ proprietary rights. While Anteris
believes it has taken appropriate steps to protect its proprietary technology, this cannot be guaranteed and could harm its competitive
position.

Inability to access capital

The ability of the Company and the Group to continue as a going concern and fund the path to profitability is dependent upon securing
additional funds in the future. The ability to access capital may be impacted by various factors including economic conditions, a decline
in investor confidence and/or sub-optimal pre-clinical or clinical outcomes from trials/studies. A reduced ability to access capital may
result in a curtailment of the development activities of the product portfolio, a delayed timeline to commercialisation and other
operational impacts.

The Directors believe the Company and Group have the ability to raise additional funds. Notwithstanding the above factors, as a
company moving towards profitability, Anteris is dependent upon continuing support from current shareholders. Should the Company
and the Group not receive the forecast cash inflows, there are material uncertainties as to whether the Company and the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern and, therefore, whether they will realise their assets and extinguish their liabilities in the normal
course of business and at the amounts stated in the financial report.

Cyber risk

Cybersecurity threats pose a significant risk to our business operations and financial performance. We have implemented various
cybersecurity measures to protect our systems and data, including firewalls, intrusion detection systems, anti-virus software,
encryption, and regular backups. However, these measures may not be sufficient to prevent all cyber threats, and we may be subject
to cyber-attacks that could result in financial losses, legal liabilities, operational disruptions, and reputational damage.

Likely Developments

Outlook

The Group is aiming to secure approval from the FDA to undertake a pivotal clinical trial. Such a trial would be designed to provide
the primary clinical evidence on which the FDA could base a decision for Pre-Market Approval that is required for commercialisation
of the DurAVR™ THV system in the United States.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS

In the opinion of the Directors, there were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Group during the financial year not
otherwise disclosed in this report and the Financial Statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS

The Group is subject to environmental regulation and other licences due to its research, development and manufacturing. The Group
complies with all relevant Federal, State and Local environmental regulations. The Board is not aware of any breach of applicable
environmental regulations by the Group.
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INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS

The name of the Directors holding office during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out below, together with details of Directors’
experience, qualifications, special responsibilities and other listed company directorships during the past three financial years.

Mr John Seaberg — Independent Non-Executive Director — Chair
Experience and expertise John Seaberg has been Chairman of the Board of Directors since March 2017 and a director since

October 2014.

Additionally, Mr. Seaberg has been serving as Board Chair of Preceptis Medical Inc since 2016
and Phraxis Medical Inc since 2009. He was Executive VP at Cedar Point Capital, a broker-dealer
focused on healthcare investment from June 2015 through December 31, 2023.

From 2008 until 2012, Mr. Seaberg was Chair of Synovis Inc., a NASDAQ-listed manufacturer of
various medical device and bio scaffold tissue products which was acquired by Baxter, and, from
2007 until 2014, was Co-Founder, Chair and Chief Executive Officer of NeoChord Inc., a company
commercialising technology developed at the Mayo Clinic for repair of the mitral valve via
minimally invasive techniques.

From 1996 to 2006, Mr. Seaberg served at Guidant Corp. (subsequently acquired by Boston
Scientific Corp.) where he held various executive level positions, including Director of Marketing
for Cardiac Rhythm Management, Vice President of Sales for Cardiac Surgery and Vice President
of Sales for Cardiac Rhythm Management.

In addition, Mr. Seaberg was co-Founder, President and Chief Executive Officer of ACIST Medical,
from 1991 to 1995.

Mr Seaberg is a resident of Minneapolis, Minnesota, United States of America.

Qualifications MBA, University of Minnesota
BA, University of Minnesota
Listed Company Directorships = None
in last three years
Special responsibilities Chair of the Board
Member of the Audit and Risk Management Committee

Chair of the Remuneration Committee

Mr Wayne Paterson — Executive Director — Chief Executive Officer

Experience and expertise Wayne Paterson joined Anteris in October 2014, served as our interim Chief Executive Officer
commencing in May 2016, and has served as the Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director
since March 2017.

Prior to joining Anteris, Mr. Paterson held senior positions at Merck KGaA (“Merck”), a
multinational science and technology company, from 2005 to 2013, including as President of
Europe, Canada and Australia, President of Emerging Markets, President of Japan and President
of Cardiovascular Medicine.

From 1999 until 2005, Mr. Paterson served at Roche Pharmaceuticals, a multinational healthcare
company, in several senior positions, including as Head of Pharmaceuticals in Roche’s South
Korean operation and Head of Commercial Operations for Roche China.

Mr Paterson is an Australian national and resides in Minneapolis, Minnesota, United States of
America.

Qualifications MBA, University of Southern Queensland

Business Studies, Queensland University of Technology

Listed Company Directorships = None
in last three years

Special responsibilities Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director
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INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr Stephen Denaro — Independent Non-Executive Director
Experience and expertise Stephen Denaro has been a director since October 2018. Mr. Denaro serves as Anteris’ Company
Secretary, a position he had held since 2018.

Mr. Denaro has been providing company secretarial services to other ASX-listed companies since
1994 and serves as a director and sole shareholder of Trio Business Intermediaries Pty Ltd, a
business consulting company, specialising in restructuring, corporate governance, directorship
and company secretarial services, through which he provides these and other services.

Mr. Denaro has over 25 years of experience in mergers and acquisitions, business valuations,
accountancy services, and income tax compliance gained from positions as Company Secretary
and Chief Financial Officer of various public companies and with major chartered accountancy
firms in Australia and the United Kingdom.

Mr Denaro is a resident of Brisbane, QLD, Australia.

Qualifications Bachelor of Business in Accountancy
Graduate Diploma in Applied Corporate Governance
Member of Chartered Accountants Australia & New Zealand
Member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors

Listed Company Directorships = None

in last three years

Special responsibilities Chair of the Audit and Risk Management Committee
Member of the Remuneration Committee

Company Secretary

Dr Wenyi Gu — Non-Executive Director

Experience and expertise Dr. Wenyi Gu has been a director since October 2018.

Dr. Gu is currently guest professor with several Chinese institutes and universities. Since January
2017, Dr. Gu has been working as a Research Fellow for the Australian Institute for
Bioengineering and Nanotechnology at the University of Queensland.

In addition, from April 2021 to March 2023, Dr. Gu was the Chief Scientific Officer of Guangzhou
Gillion Biotherapeutics Ltd, a biotechnology company.

From 2006 to 2009, he held a Perter Doherty Fellowship and was supported by the National
Health and Medical Research Council to work at Harvard Medical School as a visiting research
fellow.

Dr Gu is a resident of Brisbane, QLD, Australia.

Qualifications PhD in biochemistry and molecular biology at the Australian National University
Bachelor’s degree in veterinary science
Master’s degree in veterinary science

Listed Company Directorships = None

in last three years

Special responsibilities Member of the Audit and Risk Management Committee

Member of the Remuneration Committee
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INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS (continued)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr Stephen Denaro was appointed as Company Secretary on 31 October 2018. Mr Denaro combines the company secretarial duties
with his role as Non-Executive Director.

MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

The number of meetings of the Company’s Board of Directors and of each Board Committee held during the year ended 31 December
2023 is set out below.
Audit and Risk Management

Full meeting of directors Committee Remuneration Committee
A B A B A B
Mr Wayne Paterson 8 9 # # # #
Mr John Seaberg 9 9 4 4 2 2
Mr Stephen Denaro 9 9 4 4 2 2
Dr Wenyi Gu 6 9 3 4 2 2

A = Number of meetings attended
B = Number of meetings held during the time the director held office or was a member of the committee during the year
# = Not a member of the relevant committee

Details of the membership of the committees of the Board are presented in the Corporate Governance Statement, which can be
viewed at https://anteristech.com/about/corporate-governance.
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REMUNERATION REPORT (Audited)

The remuneration report is set out under the following main headings:
Introduction

Key Management Personnel

Principles Used to Determine the Nature and Amount of Remuneration
Remuneration Governance

Service Agreements

Details of Remuneration

Share-based Compensation

T OO M M O O © >

Additional Information

Additional Disclosures Relating to Key Management Personnel

The information provided in this Remuneration Report has been audited as required by section 308(3C) of the Corporations Act 2001.

A Introduction
The Company has continued to review and refine our remuneration framework and associated practices.
B Key Management Personnel

For the purposes of this report personnel deemed Key Management Personnel (KMP) at any time during the year ended 31 December
2023 are:

Board of Directors Other KMP

Non-Executive Directors Mr David St Denis — Chief Operating Officer

Mr John Seaberg Mr Matthew McDonnell — Chief Financial Officer
Mr Stephen Denaro (Company Secretary)

Dr Wenyi Gu

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
Mr Wayne Paterson

C Principles Used to Determine the Nature and Amount of Remuneration

The objective of the Company’s remuneration and incentive framework is to ensure the reward for performance is competitive and
appropriate for the results delivered and set to attract and retain suitably qualified and experienced candidates. Remuneration levels
are competitively set to attract qualified and experienced directors and senior executive officers, in the context of prevailing market
conditions.

The Company embodies the following principles in its remuneration framework:
e  The Remuneration Framework for the Company is overseen by the Board Remuneration Committee and the Board of
Directors.

e  Remunerationis setin light of the Company’s Mission and Vision and aligned to strategic objectives. Compensation outcomes
reflect the overall performance of the Company as well as the performance and contribution of the individual.

e  The Board seeks independent advice as required on remuneration policies and practices including recommendations on
remuneration packages and other terms of employment for Directors and for KMP with similar levels of responsibility,
performance, and potential of the individual and performance of the Group.

Board Remuneration Committee responsibilities were carried out during the year ended 31 December 2023 by John Seaberg (Chair),
Stephen Denaro and Wenyi Gu.



ANTERIS TECHNOLOGIES LTD
DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

REMUNERATION REPORT (continued)
C Principles Used to Determine the Nature and Amount of Remuneration (continued)
Non-Executive Director Remuneration Policy

Fees and payments to the Non-Executive Directors reflect the demands which are made on and the responsibilities of the Directors.
The Non-Executive Chair’s fees are determined based on competitive roles in the external market. The Chair does not participate in
the determination of his own remuneration.

The Non-Executive Directors’ fees and payments are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee for consistency with market practices.
The Chair currently receives a fixed fee plus options for his services as a director. All options granted to the Chair have been considered
and approved by shareholders at a general meeting.

The Non-Executive Directors’ fees are determined within an aggregate directors’ fee pool limit. The maximum currently stands at
$700,000 per annum and was approved by shareholders at the 2014 Annual General Meeting. Shareholders have approved additional
grants of options to the Non-Executive Directors in 2020, 2022 and 2023.

The Company’s Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration package contains the following key elements:

. Primary benefits — monthly director’s fees;
. Superannuation of 11.5% of base salary from 1 July 2023 (previously 11.0%) for Australian-based directors only;
. Equity — a grant of share options with performance hurdles linked to share price increases and tenure was made for the Chair

and the Company Secretary and was approved at an Extraordinary General Meeting on 26 February 2020; and

. Equity — grants of share options, split into three tranches vesting over 1, 2 and 3 years respectively. A grant was approved at
the Annual General Meeting held on 25 May 2022 and an additional grant was approved at the Extraordinary General Meeting
held on 6 September 2023.

In addition to the above, Mr Stephen Denaro receives $52,500 per annum for Company Secretarial services.
No retirement benefits are provided other than compulsory superannuation.

Executive Remuneration Policy
The Company’s Executive Director and other Executive’s remuneration packages contain the following key elements:
Short-term incentive compensation

e  Base salary

e  Superannuation of 11.5% of base salary from 1 July 2023 (previously 11.0%) for Australian-based personnel or 3% US pension
contributions limited by the eligible compensation threshold for US personnel.

e Ahealth benefit plan is provided to US-based Executives.
e  Short-term incentive (STI) bonus performance targets.

e Discretionary bonuses are issued upon achievement of significant milestones.

Long-term incentive compensation
e Equity settled share options are issued with exercise prices determined by the Board. Current year remuneration includes
options with both performance and non-performance conditions.

e  Cash settled share options with various performance and non-performance conditions are issued with exercise prices
determined by the Board.

Group Performance and Link to Remuneration

Remuneration for individuals is linked to the performance of the Group as well as the performance and contribution of the individual.
Incentive payments are dependent on defined corporate and individual key performance targets being met. Incentive payments for
the Chief Executive Officer and for the broader corporate group are at the discretion of the Board and Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee believes the setting of key corporate and individual key performance targets which are aligned to the
corporate strategy, will drive the development, performance and position of the Group. This will drive increased shareholder wealth
over the coming years.



ANTERIS TECHNOLOGIES LTD
DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

REMUNERATION REPORT (continued)
C Principles Used to Determine the Nature and Amount of Remuneration (continued)

The Chief Executive Officer and other executives’ short-term incentive (STI) bonus performance target are based on a percentage of
their base salaries with the actual incentive dependent on certain Group and individual performance conditions being satisfied. Short
term incentive opportunity targets are based on adjusted EBITDA, capital position targets and achievement of strategic objectives.
Strategic targets include measures linked to the advancement of the TAVR program including the early feasibility study as well as the
valve-in-valve program.

Position Name Target STI Bonus %

Chief Executive Officer Wayne Paterson 60% of base salary

Chief Operating Officer David St Denis 50% of base salary

Chief Financial Officer Matthew McDonnell 40% of base salary
D Remuneration Governance

The Remuneration Committee is a committee of the Board. The purpose of the Committee is to review and make recommendations
to the Board in relation to the overall remuneration policy for the Company and Group, including:

° Non-Executive Director remuneration;

. Executive Director and key management personnel remuneration;

e the implementation of, and amendment of, any short term and long-term incentive plans; and

e the Group’s remuneration and incentive framework including policies, practices and performance indicators.

No remuneration consultants were engaged during the 2023 financial year.

E Service Agreements
Non-Executive Directors

On appointment, all Non-Executive Directors enter into a service agreement with the Company in the form of a letter of appointment.
The letter outlines the Board’s policies and terms, including remuneration. Director’s fees cover all board activities including
membership of any board committees.

Executive Director and other key management personnel

The Group has also entered into service agreements with the Executive Director and other key management personnel (KMP), which
contain standard terms and conditions for agreements of this nature, including confidentiality, restraint on competition and intellectual
property provisions. These agreements may be terminated by notice by either party, or earlier in the event of certain breaches of the
terms and conditions.

There are no fixed term agreements. The periods of notice required to terminate the contract and the termination entitlements
provided under the contracts are summarised for the Executive Director and each member of the KMP below.

Name Notice period Termination entitlement

Wayne Paterson 3 months by either party 3 months salary over the notice period. If terminated by the Company,
an additional 9 months base salary is payable by the Company (except
for cause)

David St Denis 12 months by either party 12 months salary over the notice period except for summary
termination

Matthew McDonnell 3 months by either party 3 months salary over the notice period except for summary termination

10



ANTERIS TECHNOLOGIES LTD
DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

REMUNERATION REPORT (continued)
F Details of Remuneration

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and other Key Management Personnel of the Group is set out below.

Post-employment Share-based
12 months to 31 December 2023 Short-term benefits benefits benefits
Contracted Equity and Performance
Annual Base Salary and Non-monetary Pension and cash-settled related
Salary or fees fees Bonus ! benefits Leave 2 superannuation awards Total remuneration ®
S $ AUD $ AUD $ AUD $ AUD $ AUD $AUD* $ AUD %
Non-Executive Director
J. Seaberg USD 147,000 221,199 - - - - 741,641 962,840 77%
S. Denaro 3 AUD 157,500 157,292 - - - 11,813 360,824 529,929 68%
W. Gu AUD 105,000 105,000 - - - 11,813 284,061 400,874 71%
Executive Directors
W. Paterson USD 655,990 986,523 861,322 38,088 30,670 14,452 3,394,595 5,325,650 80%
Total directors’ compensation 1,470,014 861,322 38,088 30,670 38,078 4,781,121 7,219,293
Other Key Management Personnel
D. St Denis USD 415,800 625,308 392,261 37,772 1,571 14,474 2,466,163 3,537,549 81%
M. McDonnell AUD 345,050 354,258° 153,892 761 10,250 29,611 749,182 1,297,954 70%

The bonus figures disclosed for KMP relates to amounts accrued for the 2023 calendar year as determined under the STl scheme plus any discretionary amounts linked to achievements and/or performance.
Leave represents the movement in annual leave and long service leave provision balances. The accounting value may be negative, for example when a KMP has taken more leave than accrued during the year.
S. Denaro receives AUD105,000 in director fees plus AUD52,500 for Company Secretarial services.

The fair value of the equity-settled options is calculated at the date of grant and allocated to each reporting period evenly over the period from grant date to vesting date based on expected timing of achieving vesting conditions.
The fair value of the cash-settled rights is determined at grant date, reporting date and ultimately at the settlement date. The value included in the disclosure is the portion of the fair value of the liability recognised as an
expense during the period.

Performance related remuneration includes STl and equity incentives but excludes sign-on options.

Superannuation amounts in excess of the legislated concessional contribution cap have been paid as salary.
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ANTERIS TECHNOLOGIES LTD
DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

REMUNERATION REPORT (continued)

F Details of Remuneration (continued)

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and other Key Management Personnel of the Group is set out below.

Post-employment

Share-based

12 months to 31 December 2022 Short-term benefits benefits benefits
Contracted Performance
Annual Base Salary and Non-monetary Pension and related
Salary or fees fees Bonus ! benefits Leave ? superannuation Equity options Total remuneration °
S $ AUD $ AUD $ AUD $ AUD $ AUD SAUD* $ AUD %
Non-Executive Director
J. Seaberg USD 140,000 201,751 - - - - 521,306 723,057 72%
S. Denaro? AUD 150,000 150,000 - - - 10,750 259,771 420,521 62%
W. Gu AUD 100,000 100,000 - - - 10,750 255,717 366,467 70%
Executive Directors
W. Paterson USD 624,750 899,780 553,284 40,714 51,821 12,690 2,003,691 3,561,980 72%
Total directors’ compensation 1,351,531 553,284 40,714 51,821 34,190 3,040,485 5,072,025
Other Key Management Personnel
D. St Denis USD 396,000 570,330 292,251 36,988 13,122 12,954 749,848 1,675,493 62%
M. McDonnell AUD 335,000 343,794 6 148,740 775 6,897 27,219 298,582 826,007 54%

The bonus figures disclosed for KMP relates to amounts accrued for the 2022 calendar year as determined under the STI scheme.

S. Denaro receives AUD100,000 in director fees plus AUD50,000 for Company Secretarial services.

Performance related remuneration includes STl and equity incentives but excludes sign-on options.

Superannuation amounts in excess of the legislated concessional contribution cap have been paid as salary.

Leave represents the movement in annual leave and long service leave provision balances. The accounting value may be negative, for example when a KMP has taken more leave than accrued during the year.

The fair value of the options is calculated at the date of grant and allocated to each reporting period evenly over the period from grant date to vesting date based on expected timing of achieving vesting conditions.

12



ANTERIS TECHNOLOGIES LTD
DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

REMUNERATION REPORT (continued)
F Details of Remuneration (continued)
Short term incentives (STI)

Details of short-term cash bonuses achieved or forfeited are as follows:
31 December 2023

Name Awarded Forfeited
% %
Wayne Paterson 100% 0%
David St Denis 120% 0%
Matthew McDonnell 100% 0%

In March 2023, in addition to the STI cash bonus, Wayne Paterson was awarded an exceptional bonus of US$200,000 (A$291,965) for
performance in relation to capital raise activities.

The Board and Remuneration Committee have exercised their discretion to increase David St Denis’ STI cash bonus above the maximum
possible outcome primarily related to his achievements and efforts in relation to the overall Early Feasibility Study (EFS) trial including the
various milestones leading up to it. In addition, in October 2023 Mr St Denis was awarded an exceptional bonus of US$20,000 (A$30,730)
in relation to the achievement of completing the enrolment in the EFS.

G Share-based Compensation
Option holdings

The number of options over ordinary shares in the Company held during the financial year by each Director of Anteris Technologies Ltd,
including their personally related parties, and other KMP are set out below:

1 January 2023 - 31 December 2023

Balance at the

Balance at the Granted as end of the Vested and
Option holder start of the year compensation Purchased Expired year Unvested exercisable
Directors of Anteris
Technologies Ltd
J. Seaberg 140,000 157,500 - - 297,500 204,166 93,334
W. Paterson 696,248 700,000 4,167 - 1,400,415 916,999 483,416
S. Denaro 65,000 80,500 - - 145,500 102,333 43,167
W. Gu 40,000 80,500 - - 120,500 93,833 26,667
Other key management
personnel of the Group
D. St Denis 265,430 - - - 265,430 153,332 112,098
M. McDonnell 112,001 - - - 112,001 53,332 58,669

Exercise of options granted as compensation

No options granted as compensation were exercised during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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ANTERIS TECHNOLOGIES LTD
DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

REMUNERATION REPORT (continued)
G Share-based Compensation (continued)
Options over equity instruments granted as compensation

Details of options over ordinary shares in the Company that were granted as compensation to each key management person during
the reporting period including the fair value per option at grant date are as follows:

Total number  Exercise price

Option holder Grant date Expiry date Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3
granted S

# granted 52,500 52,500 52,500
J. Seaberg 06/09/2023 15/09/2028 157,500 24.00 K

Fair value $9.91 $10.71 $11.42

# granted 233,333 233,333 233,334
W. Paterson 06/09/2023 15/09/2028 700,000 24.00 K

Fair value $9.91 $10.71 $11.42

# granted 26,833 26,833 26,834
S. Denaro 06/09/2023 15/09/2028 80,500 24.00 .

Fair value $9.91 $10.71 $11.42

# granted 26,833 26,833 26,834
W. Gu 06/09/2023 15/09/2028 80,500 24.00 K

Fair value $9.91 $10.71 $11.42

All tranches of options have been granted for no consideration and vest in three equal tranches over 1, 2 and 3 years subject to the
holder still being employed by Anteris Technologies Ltd. Vested options are exercisable for a period up to the expiry date, being 5 years
from the date of issue.

The fair value at grant date is determined using a Black-Scholes option pricing model that considers the exercise price, the term of
the option, the share price at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the
risk-free interest rate for the term of the option. The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility (based on the
remaining life of the options), adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility due to publicly available information.

The maximum value of the options granted is determined by multiplying the fair value per option at grant date by the number of
options granted during the year. This amount is allocated to each reporting period evenly over the period from grant date to vesting
date based on expected timing of achieving vesting conditions. The minimum value is nil if the service conditions are not met.

On 20 March 2020 following approval by shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting on 26 February 2020, the Company issued
350,000 options to Wayne Paterson (CEO), 60,000 options to John Seaberg (Chairman) and 25,000 options to Stephen Denaro (Non-
Executive Director and Company Secretary) at an exercise price of $11.20. In 2022, 289,500 of the 435,000 options vested upon
achievement of share price performance hurdles. The remaining options are only exercisable when the Company’s share price reaches
$33.60 for at least 10 out of 20 sequential days. On 17 February 2023, the Board of Directors exercised their discretion to extend the
period to achieve the share price hurdle, by an additional 12 months, from 19 March 2023 to 19 March 2024. The details of the options
modified, including the incremental fair value per option at modification date are as follows:

Incremental fair Total Incremental fair
Modification Total number Exercise price value per option value of modification
Option holder date Expiry date modified S $ S
J. Seaberg 17/02/2023 15/09/2028 20,000 11.20 9.03 180,620
W. Paterson 17/02/2023 15/09/2028 117,000 11.20 9.03 1,056,627
S. Denaro 17/02/2023 15/09/2028 8,500 11.20 9.03 76,763

Options over equity instruments which vested during the year

Details on options over ordinary shares in the Company held by key management person that vested during the reporting period are as
follows:

Number of options Fair value per option at

Option holder vested during the Exercise price grant date

year Grant date S $ Expiry date
J. Seaberg 26,667 25/05/2022 12.96 10.66 13/06/2027
W. Paterson 13,741 25/05/2022 9.48 11.75 13/06/2027
W. Paterson 86,259 25/05/2022 12.96 10.66 13/06/2027
S. Denaro 13,333 25/05/2022 12.96 10.66 13/06/2027
W. Gu 13,333 25/05/2022 12.96 10.66 13/06/2027
D. St Denis 20,000 23/09/2021 8.88 4.80 23/09/2026
D. St Denis 66,668 17/09/2022 12.96 17.03 13/06/2027
M. McDonnell 20,000 23/09/2021 8.88 4.80 23/09/2026
M. McDonnell 16,668 17/09/2022 12.96 17.03 13/06/2027
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ANTERIS TECHNOLOGIES LTD
DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

REMUNERATION REPORT (continued)
G Share-based Compensation (continued)
Share Price Performance Rights (Cash-settled) granted as compensation

During the year, the Company established a Share Price Performance Plan (SPP) which provides employees with the right to receive
cash payments calculated by considering the rise in Anteris share price from the base price specified at grant date. The SPP rights
expire after 5 years. There are two types of arrangements:

- Service-based conditions: employees have the right to receive cash payments after 1, 2 and 3 years from the grant date subject
to the holder still being employed by the Group. The cash payments are calculated by considering the rise in Anteris share price
from the base price specified at grant date to the vesting date.

- Service and performance conditions: the SPP rights are divided into three equal tranches which vest and become exercisable
on the earlier of the achievement of specified share price hurdles and the completion of 3 years’ service. The cash payments
are calculated by considering the rise in Anteris share price from the base price specified at grant date to the exercise date.

Details of SPP rights that were granted as compensation to each key management person during the reporting period including the
fair value per right at grant date are as follows:

Rights holder Grant date Expiry date Total number Base price Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3
granted S

. # granted 233,333 233,333 233,334

D. St Denis * 02/11/2023 13/09/2028 700,000 24.00 .
Fair value 8.83 8.83 8.83
# granted 116,666 116,666 116,668

M. McDonnell 2 19/09/2023 13/09/2028 350,000 24.00 .
Fair value 3.42 5.78 7.72

! The SPP rights granted to D. St Denis contain both service and performance conditions. The first tranche's share price milestone is
$60.00, the second tranche's is $75.00, and there is no share price requirement for the third tranche.

2 The SPP rights granted to M McDonnell contain only service-based conditions.

The fair value of the SPP rights without share hurdles is determined using a Black-Scholes option pricing model that considers the
exercise price, the term of the right, the share price and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield
and the risk-free interest rate for the term of the right. The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility (based on the
remaining life of the options), adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility due to publicly available information. The fair
value is remeasured at each reporting date and ultimately at settlement date.

The fair value of the SPP rights which contain share hurdles is determined using the Monte Carlo pricing model which estimates the
fair values by generating numerous future scenarios and incorporating the various variables to simulate a range of potential
outcomes. The average value of these simulations is the fair value applied to the SPP rights at the valuation date.
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ANTERIS TECHNOLOGIES LTD
DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

REMUNERATION REPORT (continued)
H Additional Information
The Remuneration Committee considers the Group’s performance and the consequences of the performance on shareholder wealth

in determining KMP remuneration.

KMP are incentivised to drive increased shareholder wealth through the inclusion of EBITDA, capital position targets and
achievement of strategic objectives as STI performance targets. In determining KMP remuneration, the EBITDA target is based on the
budgeted EBITDA adjusted for certain defined financial captions. EBITDA is a non-IFRS measure and is unaudited.

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
$ $ $ $ $
EBITDA (66,459,553) (41,828,964) (20,130,095) (13,668,003) (4,097,536)
Share price at year end (SA) 19.15 22.20 12.96 3.75 10.00
Market capitalisation 341,255,853 308,621,803 143,776,231 23,352,218 59,084,280

A reconciliation of Loss before income tax from continuing operations to EBITDA is shown below:

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
$ $ $ $ $
Loss ,befOre incom_e tax from (69,080,648) (44,340,161) (22,907,027) (15,274,534) (6,181,382)
contlnumg operatlons
Reconciling items:
Interest income (642,206) (308,463) (91,396) (185,012) (65,660)
Financing costs 473,278 1,077,740 1,514,146 578,965 533,058
Depreciation and amortisation 2,790,023 1,741,920 1,354,182 1,212,578 1,616,448
expense
EBITDA (66,459,553) (41,828,964) (20,130,095) (13,668,003) (4,097,536)

| Additional Disclosures Relating to Key Management Personnel
Shareholding

The number of shares in the Company held during the year by each Director and other KMP of the Group, including their personally
related parties, is set out below. There were no shares granted as compensation during the reporting or comparative period.
1 January 2023 - 31 December 2023

Received during the
Balance at the start Purchased during year on exercise of  Balance at the end

Ordinary shareholders of the year the year options of the year
Directors of Anteris Technologies Ltd

J. Seaberg 15,858 - - 15,858
W. Paterson 16,167 4,167 - 20,334
S. Denaro 7,222 - - 7,222
W. Gu - - -

Other key management personnel of the Group
D. St Denis N °
M. McDonnell - -

Loans to Key Management Personnel

No loans have currently been provided to key management personnel.

THIS IS THE END OF THE AUDITED REMUNERATION REPORT
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ANTERIS TECHNOLOGIES LTD

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

UNISSUED SHARES UNDER CONVERTIBLE EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

Unissued ordinary shares of Anteris Technologies Ltd under convertible equity instruments as at the date of this report are as follows:

Exercise price

Issue date Expiry date $ Options Warrants
25/10/2017 26/10/2024 25.31 - 49,388
08/06/2018 31/12/2027 30.00 3,258 -
08/06/2018 31/12/2027 37.00 31,737 -
28/02/2019 02/04/2028 3.60 1,002 -
28/02/2019 10/04/2028 3.60 1,002 -
28/02/2019 16/05/2028 3.60 1,500 -
14/05/2019 15/05/2029 5.90 31,890 -
14/06/2019 12/07/2029 6.80 2,505 -
30/08/2019 01/09/2029 6.80 3,000 -
20/03/2020 20/03/2025 11.20 435,000 -
17/04/2020 17/04/2025 3.50 915 -
03/06/2020 03/06/2025 7.58 166 -
07/10/2020 07/10/2025 4.00 250 -
27/10/2020 27/10/2025 3.94 400 -
25/02/2021 25/02/2026 4.48 2,166 -
12/04/2021 12/04/2024 10.00 350,000 -
28/05/2021 28/05/2026 8.72 583 -
22/07/2021 22/07/2026 7.66 1,000 -
10/09/2021 10/09/2026 8.97 1,500 -
10/09/2021 10/09/2026 8.50 20,000 -
23/09/2021 23/09/2026 8.88 190,000 -
27/09/2021 27/09/2025 10.00 1,041,099 -
11/11/2021 11/11/2026 8.60 250 -
24/12/2021 24/12/2024 10.00 70,000 -
09/02/2022 09/02/2027 17.23 500 -
27/04/2022 27/04/2027 17.11 2,250 -
13/06/2022 13/06/2027 9.48 41,222 -
13/06/2022 13/06/2027 12.96 418,778 -
29/06/2022 29/06/2027 22.01 20,750 -
19/09/2022 13/06/2027 12.96 350,000 -
24/10/2022 24/10/2027 22.84 1,334 -
02/02/2023 02/02/2028 22.61 1,584 -
15/02/2023 15/02/2025 29.00 1,954,167 -
25/05/2023 25/05/2028 21.95 4,050 -
31/05/2023 31/05/2025 29.00 4,167 -
27/07/2023 27/07/2028 20.65 3,000 -
15/09/2023 15/09/2028 24.00 1,018,500 -
22/11/2023 21/11/2028 19.73 3,750 -
01/02/2024 01/02/2029 18.68 3,500

Total 6,016,775 49,388

No convertible equity instrument holder has any right to participate in any other share issue of the Company or any other entity. The
convertible equity instruments are exercisable at any time after vesting up to the expiry date. All unissued shares are ordinary shares

of the Company.

Further details about the above are included in the Remuneration report, note 9 Contributed equity and note 10 Equity — Reserves.
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ANTERIS TECHNOLOGIES LTD
DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

INSURANCE OF OFFICERS

During the year to 31 December 2023, the Company paid a premium in respect of a contract insuring the Directors and Officers of the
Company and any subsidiary against a liability incurred as a Director or Officer to the extent permitted by the Corporations Act 2001.
Due to a confidentiality clause in the policy, the amount of the premium has not been disclosed.

The liabilities insured are legal costs that may be incurred in defending civil or criminal proceedings that may be brought against the
officers in their capacity as officers of the Company, and any other payments arising from liabilities incurred by the officers in
connection with such proceedings, other than where such liabilities arise out of conduct involving a wilful breach of duty by the officers
or the improper use by the officers of their position or of information to gain advantage for themselves or someone else or to cause
detriment to the Company. It is not possible to apportion the premium between amounts relating to the insurance against legal costs
and those relating to other liabilities.

PROCEEDINGS ON BEHALF OF THE COMPANY

No person has applied to the Court under section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001 for leave to bring proceedings on behalf of the
Company, or to intervene in any proceedings to which the Company is a party, for the purposes of taking responsibility on behalf of
the Company for all or part of those proceedings.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any item, transaction or event of
a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the Directors of the Company, to significantly affect the operations of the Group,
the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Group, in future financial years.

NON-AUDIT SERVICES

The Company may decide to employ the auditor on assignments additional to their statutory audit duties, where the auditors’ expertise
and experience with the Company are important.

The Company paid $1,100 to KPMG for tax related services. The Company’s Board of Directors has considered the non-audit services
provided by the auditor and is satisfied that the provision of those non-audit services during the year by the auditor did not compromise
the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001.

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

A copy of the auditor’s independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is attached.
This report is made in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

John Seaberg
Chair

Dated 28 February 2024
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KPMG

Lead Auditors Independence Declaration under
oection 3U/6 af the Garporations Act 2001

To the Directors of Anteris Technologies Ltd

| declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to the audit of Anteris Technologies Ltd
for the financial year ended 31 December 2023 there have been:

i. no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the
Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and

ii. no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

Kfiné- 4

KPMG Stephen Board
Partner

Brisbane
28 February 2024

KPMG, an Australian partnership and a member firm of the KPMG global organisation of independent member firms affiliated
with KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and
logo are trademarks used under license by the independent member firms of the KPMG global organisation. Liability limited by
a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.
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ANTERIS TECHNOLOGIES LTD
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

2023 2022
Note $ $

Revenue from continuing operations 3 4,111,082 4,590,047
Other income 3 2,916,652 2,136,095
Foreign exchange (loss)/gain (924,442) 2,334,756
Changes in inventory 121,812 (232,844)
Raw materials and consumables used (1,715,712) (1,748,570)
Employee benefits 4 (25,435,920) (17,748,909)
Consultancy and legal fees (4,653,366) (6,212,773)
Travel and conference expenses (1,836,346) (1,351,103)
Research and development costs (22,850,792) (13,214,080)
Share-based payments 20 (9,536,991) (4,700,449)
Depreciation and amortisation expense 4 (2,790,023) (1,741,920)
Financing costs 4 (473,278) (1,077,740)
Fair value movement of derivatives 33,335 (347,492)
Marketing and promotional expenses (1,650,945) (1,181,243)
Infrastructure (844,516) (749,114)
Insurance (1,268,725) (1,082,233)
IT and telecommunications (1,072,232) (1,311,056)
Other expenses (1,210,241) (701,533)
Loss before income tax from continuing operations (69,080,648) (44,340,161)
Income tax benefit/(expense) 5 187,393 -
Loss after income tax for the year (68,893,255) (44,340,161)
Total loss is attributable to:
Equity holders of Anteris Technologies Ltd (67,333,386) (44,340,161)
Non-controlling interest 16 (1,559,869) -

(68,893,255) (44,340,161)
Loss per share from continuing operations attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company ($ per share)
Basic and diluted loss per share 11 4.31 3.32

The above Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



ANTERIS TECHNOLOGIES LTD

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

2023 2022
$ $
Loss after income tax for the year (68,893,255) (44,340,161)
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 725,238 (684,741)
Income tax expense recognised (187,393) -
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax 537,845 (684,741)
Total comprehensive loss (68,355,410) (45,024,902)
Total comprehensive loss is attributable to:
Equity holders of Anteris Technologies Ltd (66,833,497) (45,024,902)
Non-controlling interest (1,521,913) -
(68,355,410) (45,024,902)

The above Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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ANTERIS TECHNOLOGIES LTD

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023

2023 2022

Note S S
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6(a) 30,831,932 13,805,328
Trade and other receivables 6(b) 1,270,262 831,992
Inventories 7(a) 646,713 524,901
Other assets 7(b) 1,901,927 1,403,512
Prepayments 1,235,575 1,500,059
Total Current Assets 35,886,409 18,065,792
Non-Current Assets
Other receivables 6(b) 610,047 -
Plant & equipment 7(c) 5,881,076 3,307,889
Right-of-use assets 7(d) 1,945,779 1,209,268
Intangible assets 7(e) 1,377,991 896,455
Total Non-Current Assets 9,814,893 5,413,612
TOTAL ASSETS 45,701,302 23,479,404
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 6(c) 10,643,421 6,128,103
Lease liabilities 7(d) 977,967 757,206
Other financial liabilities 6(d) 1,348,963 -
Provisions 7(f) 854,684 655,227
Total Current Liabilities 13,825,035 7,540,536
Non-Current Liabilities
Lease liabilities 7(d) 1,354,938 649,120
Other financial liabilities 6(d) 174,288 1,382,298
Provisions 7(f) 1,684,899 689,675
Total Non-Current Liabilities 3,214,125 2,721,093
TOTAL LIABILITIES 17,039,160 10,261,629
NET ASSETS 28,662,142 13,217,775
EQUITY
Contributed equity 9 282,988,241 211,832,403
Reserves 10 16,038,077 3,405,140
Accumulated losses (270,424,305) (202,019,768)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 28,602,013 13,217,775
Non-controlling interest 16 60,129 -
TOTAL EQUITY 28,662,142 13,217,775

The above Consolidated Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



ANTERIS TECHNOLOGIES LTD
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Share-based

Foreign currency

Contributed payments translation Accumulated Non-controlling
Equity reserve Other Reserves reserve Losses Total Interest Total Equity
Note $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Balance at 1 January 2022 172,638,045 7,097,424 (6,885,884) (822,108) (157,679,607) 14,347,870 - 14,347,870
Loss for the year - - - - (44,340,161) (44,340,161) - (44,340,161)
Other comprehensive income - - - (684,741) - (684,741) - (684,741)
Total comprehensive loss - - - (684,741) (44,340,161) (45,024,902) - (45,024,902)
Transactions with owners in their capacity
as owners
Shares issued during the year 9(b) 39,701,043 - - - - 39,701,043 - 39,701,043
Capital raising costs 9(b) (506,685) - - - - (506,685) - (506,685)
Share-based payments 10(d) - 4,700,449 - - - 4,700,449 - 4,700,449
Balance at 31 December 2022 211,832,403 11,797,873 (6,885,884) (1,506,849) (202,019,768) 13,217,775 - 13,217,775
Loss for the year - - - - (67,333,386) (67,333,386) (1,559,869) (68,893,255)
Other comprehensive income - - - 499,889 - 499,889 37,956 537,845
Total comprehensive loss - - - 499,889 (67,333,386) (66,833,497) (1,521,913) (68,355,410)
Transactions with non-controlling interest
Acquisition of subsidiary 15 - - - - - - 510,891 510,891
Acquisition of NCI without a change in 16 ) ) ) ) (1,071,151) (1,071,151) 1,071,151 a
control
Transactions with owners in their capacity
as owners
Shares issued during the year 9(b) 78,953,578 - - - - 78,953,578 - 78,953,578
Capital raising costs 9(b) (7,797,740) - - - - (7,797,740) - (7,797,740)
Share-based payments 10(d) - 12,133,048 - - - 12,133,048 - 12,133,048
Balance at 31 December 2023 282,988,241 23,930,921 (6,885,884) (1,006,960) (270,424,305) 28,602,013 60,129 28,662,142

The above Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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ANTERIS TECHNOLOGIES LTD
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

2023 2022

Note $ $
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers 4,729,070 4,196,416
Payments to suppliers and employees (57,860,641) (44,832,880)
R&D tax incentive refund 1,433,028 1,595,730
Government grants - 22,000
Interest paid (363,749) (204,899)
Interest received 629,712 228,442
NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 6(a) (51,432,580) (38,995,191)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for plant & equipment (3,551,884) (2,278,961)
Payments for intangible assets (11,141) (129,943)
Acquisition of subsidiary including intangible assets 15 (377,063) -
Deferred proceeds from sale of distribution rights - 1,043,614
Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment 37,850 5,000
NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (3,902,238) (1,360,290)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from share or options issues 78,932,078 34,894,315
Share issue transaction costs (4,015,232) (1,467,705)
Repayment of borrowings 6(a) (1,150,381) (1,350,000)
Payment of lease liabilities 7(d) (816,313) (712,788)
NET CASH INFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 72,950,152 31,363,822
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH HELD 17,615,334 (8,991,659)
CASH AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 13,805,328 21,299,864
Effect of exchange rate movements on cash (588,730) 1,497,123
CASH AT END OF THE YEAR 6 30,831,932 13,805,328

The above Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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ANTERIS TECHNOLOGIES LTD
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
1. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements comprise Anteris Technologies Ltd (the “Company”) and its controlled entities (the “Group”). The
Company is a listed, for-profit, public company, incorporated and domiciled in Australia.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is Anteris Technologies Ltd’s functional and
presentation currency. Figures presented in the financial report are rounded to the nearest dollar.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for derivative financial
instruments, which have been measured at fair value through profit or loss.

In accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, these financial statements present the results of the Group only. Supplementary

information about the parent entity is disclosed in note 14.

The Group’s accounting policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented unless otherwise stated.

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards Board and the Corporations Act 2001. The consolidated financial
statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board.

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on the date of signing the Directors’
Declaration.

(a) Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, which contemplates continuity of normal business activities
and realisation of assets and discharges of liabilities in the ordinary course of business.

As disclosed in the financial statements, the Group incurred a net loss of $68,893,255 and had net cash outflows from operating activities
of $51,432,580 for the financial year ended 31 December 2023. As at that date, the Group had a cash balance of $30,831,932.

The Directors believe that there are reasonable grounds that the Group will continue as a going concern and that it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in the preparation of the financial report after consideration of the following factors:

e The Company has an established track record of successfully raising new capital and debt facilities.

e Recent successful clinical results of the Group including completing an Early Feasibility Study in the United States treating
patients with severe aortic stenosis using DurAVR™ THV. In addition, the Group successfully completed six implantations of
DurAVR™ THV in valve-in-valve procedures as part of Health Canada’s Special Access Program.

e  Retention of the manufacturing rights of ADAPT®’s CardioCel™ and VascuCel™ products until January 2025.

e  Continued product innovation led by the TAVR program and other large market opportunities that are at varying stages of
design development, regulatory clearance and user evaluation.

e New possible partnerships and alliances for TAVR products.
e Monitoring, containing and if required deferring operational costs, including R&D costs and capital expenditures.

e  Atthe date of this report 2,825,474 options with expiry dates between now and 2029 are in-the-money and could be exercised
at any time. If all of these were converted, they would generate $31,446,940 of capital for the Company.

In the event that sufficient above opportunities do not eventuate, there are material uncertainties as to whether the Company and the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern and therefore, whether they will realise their assets and extinguish their liabilities in
the normal course of business and at the amounts stated in the financial report.

The financial report does not include adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts nor to the
amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company and Group not continue as a going concern.
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ANTERIS TECHNOLOGIES LTD
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
1. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
(b) Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries of Anteris Technologies Ltd as at 31
December 2023 and the results of all subsidiaries for the year then ended. Anteris Technologies Ltd and its subsidiaries together are
referred to in these financial statements as the 'Group'.

Subsidiaries are all those entities over which Anteris Technologies Ltd has control. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and can affect those returns through its power to direct the activities
of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Non-controlling interests (NCI) are measured initially at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the date of
acquisition. Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between entities in the Group are eliminated. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. A change in ownership interest, without the
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction, where the difference between the consideration transferred and the book value
of the share of the non-controlling interest acquired is recognised directly in equity attributable to the parent.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the statement of profit or loss and statement
of other comprehensive income, statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity of the consolidated entity. Losses
incurred by the consolidated entity are attributed to the non-controlling interests in full, even if that results in a deficit balance.

Where the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets including goodwill, liabilities and non-controlling interest in
the subsidiary together with any cumulative translation differences recognised in equity. The Group recognises the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any investment retained together with any gain or loss in profit or loss.

(c) Use of accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts in the financial statements. Management continually evaluates its judgements and estimates in relation to assets,
liabilities, contingent liabilities, revenue and expenses. Management bases its judgments, estimates and assumptions on historical
experience and on other various factors, including expectations of future events that management believes to be reasonable under
the circumstances. The resulting accounting judgements and estimates will seldom equal the related actual results. The judgements,
estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are addressed
in the following notes:

Note 1(a) Going concern

Note 7(b) Research and Development Tax incentive
Note 15 Acquisition of Subsidiary including intangibles
Note 20 Share-based payments

27



ANTERIS TECHNOLOGIES LTD
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

2. SEGMENT REPORTING

(a) Description of segments

Segment information is presented using a management approach, i.e. segment information is provided on the same basis as information
as used for internal reporting purposes by the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”, being the CEO that makes key strategic
decisions). The CODM is responsible for the allocation of resources and assessing the performance of the Group. Management has
determined that the activities of the business as reviewed by the CODM are one segment, being the development and commercialisation

of the ADAPT® platform technology. This is focused on the DurAVR™ Transcatheter Heart Valve System.

2023 2022
$ $
Total segment revenue?! 4,111,082 4,590,047
Segment profit/(loss) (68,893,255) (44,340,161)
Depreciation & amortisation 2,790,023 1,741,920
Segment assets 45,701,302 23,479,404
Segment liabilities (17,039,160) (10,261,629)
Acquisition of non-current assets 6,656,939 3,491,571

1

$2,625,634, United States $1,964,413).

(b) Geographic information

Segment revenue was recognised in the following countries, Australia $2,191,298, United States $1,919,784 (2022: Australia

Segment revenues below are based on the geographic location of the customers and segment assets have been disclosed below

based on the location of the physical assets.

2023 2022

$ $
Revenue
Australia 12,682 25,996
United States 3,389,959 3,502,199
Switzerland 708,441 1,061,852

4,111,082 4,590,047
Non-current assets
Australia 2,231,857 2,073,814
United States 6,746,519 3,046,389
Switzerland 226,470 293,409

9,204,846 5,413,612

(c) Major customers

Revenues of $2,178,616 and $1,919,784 were derived from two external customers (2022: $2,616,637 and $1,964,413 of

revenue derived from two external customers).
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ANTERIS TECHNOLOGIES LTD
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

3. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME
2023 2022
$ $

Revenue from continuing operations

Sale of goods

Revenue from contracts with customers, at a point in time 4,111,082 4,590,047
Other income

Government grants ! 1,073,301 1,824,793
LeMaitre holdback income 2 649,459 -
Early Feasibility Study (‘EFS’) income 470,143 -
Interest income 642,206 308,463
Other 81,543 2,839
Total other income 2,916,652 2,136,095

Government grants consists of $1,043,785 Research and Development Tax Incentive income accrued relating to the year ended
31 December 2023 and $29,516 Research and Development Tax Incentive income recognised relating to the year ended 31
December 2022.

2 In 2019, Anteris Technologies Ltd sold the distribution rights to its CardioCel™ and VascuCel™ product range to LeMaitre
Vascular, Inc. (‘LeMaitre’). The agreement provided that Anteris was entitled to an earn-out payable upon receipt of product
approval under European Medical Devices Directorate Regulation. Historically, the income had not been virtually certain to
be received. In 2023, the agreement was amended and Anteris is entitled to 33% of the holdback amount by 26 January 2025
if LeMaitre do not obtain the regulatory approvals for either the CardioCel™ and VascuCel™ by 11 January 2025. The payment
will be reduced by 33% of the eligible deductions. The first instalment has been recognised as a non-current receivable as at
31 December 2023.

Recognition and Measurement

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods for the ADAPT® business unit is recognised when control of goods transfers to the customer. Revenue is
recognised at an amount which reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods. Revenue
received for a contract that includes variable consideration (i.e. sales rebates relating to volume discounts), are subject to revised
conditions for recognition, whereby it must be highly probable that no significant reversal of the variable amount may occur when the
uncertainties around its measurement are removed. The amount of revenue recognised is estimated based on sales terms and historical
experience.

The Company generates its revenue from direct product sales and typically does not have any significant unusual payment terms beyond
30 days in its contracts with customers.

Product returns are typically not significant because returns are generally not allowed unless the products do not meet all applicable
specifications.

Government Grants

Grants from the Government, including a Research and Development Tax incentive, are recognised as income once the Group is satisfied
that the Group has complied with the conditions attached to the tax incentives and there is reasonable assurance that the tax incentive
grant will be received. Government grants relating to costs incurred are recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

EFS income

Early Feasibility Study Income generated while assessing the feasibility and viability of the DurAVR™ THV device is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable. The income has been presented within ‘Other income’, distinct from other operating
revenues.
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ANTERIS TECHNOLOGIES LTD
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
3. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (continued)
Recognition and Measurement (continued)

Other income

Other income is recognised when it is received or when the right to receive payment is established.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the effective interest rate, which is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the

financial asset.

4. EXPENSES

2023 2022
Note $ $
Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation of Plant and equipment 7(c) 1,403,637 766,113
Depreciation of Right-of-Use Assets 7(d) 832,119 687,407
Amortisation of Intangibles 7(e) 554,267 288,400
2,790,023 1,741,920
Employee benefits
Remuneration and on-costs 23,776,689 16,301,112
Superannuation and pension expenses 852,022 650,863
Other employee benefits 807,209 796,934
25,435,920 17,748,909
Share-based payments 20 9,536,991 4,700,449
Financing costs
Interest and finance charges 100,106 85,395
Interest expense on lease liabilities 311,047 164,721
Amortisation of transaction costs - 717,235
Change in estimated cashflows of variable liabilities 19,000 -
Unwind discount on liabilities 43,125 110,389
473,278 1,077,740
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ANTERIS TECHNOLOGIES LTD
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

5. INCOME TAX
2023 2022
$ $
(a) Numerical reconciliation of income tax benefit to prima facie tax
payable

Loss from continuing operations before income tax expense (69,080,648) (44,340,161)
Tax expense/(benefit) at the Australian tax rate of 25.0% (2022: 25.0%) (17,270,162) (11,085,040)
Tax effect of amounts that are not deductible/(taxable) in calculating taxable income:

Share-based payments 789,974 216,249

Non-assessable income (439,024) (438,606)

Non-deductible expenses 403,091 502,761

Other costs deductible for tax purposes - (323,151)

Research and development expenditure 643,155 806,616

Foreign exchange losses - 1,202,639
Subtotal (15,872,966) (9,118,532)
Adjustment for difference in foreign tax rates 2,074,574 1,083,830
Total tax expense benefit (13,798,392) (8,034,702)
Deferred tax — current year benefits not recognised 13,835,162 8,034,702
Deferred tax — recognition of deferred tax assets (224,163) -
Income tax (benefit)/expense (187,393) -

(b) Amounts recognised directly in equity

Aggregate current and deferred tax arising in the reporting period and not recognised in net profit or loss or other comprehensive
income but directly debited or credited to equity:

2023 2022

$ $
Deferred tax: Australian share issue costs (261,414) 195,579
Deferred tax: Foreign currency translation reserve (227,102) -
Deferred tax: Foreign share-based payments 1,113,448 (1,113,448)

624,932 (917,869)
Deferred tax - current year benefits not recognised (437,539) 917,869
Net amount recognised in equity 187,393 _
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ANTERIS TECHNOLOGIES LTD

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

5. INCOME TAX (continued)

(c) Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities)

The composition and movement of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) is as follows:

Provisions

Accruals

Share issue costs
through equity

Other capitalised costs

Foreign share-based
payments

Lease liabilities
Prepayments

Plant and equipment

Capitalised R&D for
foreign jurisdictions

Receivables
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets

FX gains/losses

Carry forward R&D tax
offsets

Sub-total

Unrecognised net
deferred tax assets

Tax assets

Balance Recognised Balance Recognised Balance
1 January in profit or Recognised 31 December in profit or Recognised 31 December
2022 loss in equity 2022 loss in equity 2023
$ $ $ $ $ $ $

251,541 65,290 - 316,831 293,168 - 609,999
531,165 10,152 - 541,317 570,671 - 1,111,988
621,080 - (195,579) 425,501 (192,243) 261,414 494,672
- 404,747 - 404,747 (257,192) - 147,555
- 804,873 1,113,448 1,918,321 1,017,692 (1,113,448) 1,822,565
- 250,674 - 250,674 215,600 - 466,274
- - - - (133,774) - (133,774)
(71,103) (121,652) - (192,755) 178,520 - (14,235)
- 2,415,713 - 2,415,713 3,886,599 - 6,302,312
- - - - (34,965) 5 (34,965)
- (211,084) - (211,084) (178,920) 5 (390,004)
316,217 (120,904) - 195,313 (36,283) - 159,030
404,317 (1,353,726) - (949,409) 555,868 414,495 20,954
- - - - 1,982,393 - 1,982,393
2,053,217 2,144,083 917,869 5,115,169 7,867,134 (437,539) 12,544,764
(2,053,217) (2,144,083) (917,869) (5,115,169) (7,867,134) 437,539 (12,544,764)
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ANTERIS TECHNOLOGIES LTD
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
5. INCOME TAX (continued)
(c) Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) (continued)

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) are attributable to the following:

Assets Liabilities Net
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
$ $ $ $ $ $
Provisions 609,999 316,831 - - 609,999 316,831
Accruals 1,111,988 541,317 - - 1,111,988 541,317
Share issue costs through equity 494,672 425,501 - - 494,672 425,501
Other capitalised costs 147,555 404,747 - - 147,555 404,747
Foreign share-based payments 1,822,565 1,918,321 - - 1,822,565 1,918,321
Lease liabilities 466,274 250,674 - - 466,274 250,674
Prepayments - - (133,774) - (133,774) -
Plant and equipment 90,505 - (104,740) (192,755) (14,235) (192,755)
jcllarz;?gtsiiisR&D for foreign 6,302,312 2,415,713 - - 6,302,312 2,415,713
Receivables - - (34,965) - (34,965) -
Right-of-use assets - - (390,004) (211,084) (390,004) (211,084)
Intangible assets 159,030 195,313 - - 159,030 195,313
FX gains/losses 51,616 - (30,662) (949,409) 20,954 (949,409)
Carry forward R&D tax offsets 1,982,393 - - - 1,982,393 -
Sub-total 13,238,909 6,468,417 (694,145) (1,353,248) 12,544,764 5,115,169
Set off deferred tax liabilities (694,145) (1,353,248) 694,145 1,353,248 - -
Unrecognised net deferred tax assets (12,544,764) (5,115,169) - - (12,544,764) (5,115,169)

Tax assets - - - - -

(d) Tax losses

Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax assets have been recognised:

2023 2022
$ $
Australian losses 78,680,722 65,436,741
Foreign losses 105,225,400 83,974,228
Total losses 183,906,122 149,410,969
Potential tax benefit 41,172,137 33,247,257

Included within the Australian losses disclosed above, the Australian tax consolidated group has $7,533,379 (2022: $8,257,010) of
transferred losses which are subject to loss recoupment testing and their available fraction which limits the annual rate at which losses
may be claimed by the Parent entity. Anteris’ Group tax losses are subject to laws and regulations specific to each geography in which
they were incurred, which may impact on the Group’s ability to utilise these losses in the future. Subject to the above, tax losses for
which no deferred tax asset have been recognised expire as follows:

2023 Expiry date 2022 Expiry date
$ $
Expire 24,578,589 2024 - 2037 26,905,474 2023 - 2037
Never expire 159,327,533 - 122,505,495 -
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ANTERIS TECHNOLOGIES LTD
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
5. INCOME TAX (continued)
(e) Recognition and Measurement

The income tax expense or benefit for the year is the tax payable on that period's taxable income based on the applicable
income tax rate for each jurisdiction, adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences,
unused tax losses and the adjustment recognised for prior periods, where applicable.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates expected to apply when the assets are
recovered or liabilities are settled, based on those tax rates that are enacted or substantively enacted, except for:

o When the deferred income tax asset or liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting nor taxable
profits; or

e  When the taxable temporary difference is associated with interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures, and the timing
of the reversal can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable
amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

The carrying amount of recognised and unrecognised deferred tax assets are reviewed each reporting date. Deferred tax assets
recognised are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that future taxable profits will be available for the carrying amount
to be recovered. Previously unrecognised deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that there are future
taxable profits available to recover the asset.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities; and they relate to the same taxable authority on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entity's which intend to settle simultaneously.

Tax Consolidation

Anteris Technologies Ltd and its wholly-owned Australian subsidiaries have formed an income tax consolidated group under the tax
consolidation legislation. The parent entity and each subsidiary in the tax consolidated group continue to account for their own current
and deferred tax amounts.

In addition to its own current and deferred tax amounts, the parent entity also recognises the current tax liabilities (or assets) and the
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and unused tax credits assumed from each subsidiary in the tax consolidated group.

Assets or liabilities arising under tax funding agreements with the tax consolidated entities are recognised as amounts receivable from
or payable to other entities in the tax consolidated group. The tax funding arrangement ensures that the intercompany charge equals
the current tax liability or benefit of each tax consolidated group member, resulting in neither a contribution by the head entity to the
subsidiaries nor a distribution by the subsidiaries to the head entity.

The Group is subject to income taxes in the jurisdictions in which it operates. Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income tax. There are many transactions and calculations undertaken during the ordinary course of business for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on the Group’s
current understanding of the tax law. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the carrying amounts, such
differences will impact the current and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences only if the Group considers it is probable that future
taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets
is reviewed at the reporting date. Changes in circumstances may alter expectations and affect the carrying amount of deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Any resulting adjustment to the carrying value of a deferred tax item will be recorded to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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6. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
2023 2022
$ $

Non- Non-
Financial assets Notes Current current Total Current current Total
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank 6(a) 19,024,267 - 19,024,267 13,716,572 - 13,716,572
Short term deposits 6(a) 11,807,665 - 11,807,665 88,756 - 88,756
Total Cash and cash equivalents 30,831,932 - 30,831,932 13,805,328 - 13,805,328
Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables 6(b) 595,843 - 595,843 650,811 - 650,811
Other receivables 6(b) 674,419 610,047 1,284,466 181,181 - 181,181
Total Trade and other receivables 1,270,262 610,047 1,880,309 831,992 - 831,992
Total financial assets 32,102,194 610,047 32,712,241 14,637,320 - 14,637,320

2023 2022

$ $

Non- Non-
Financial liabilities Notes Current current Total Current current Total
Trade and other payables
Trade payables 6(c) 4,589,401 - 4,589,401 2,548,885 - 2,548,885
Other payables 6(c) 6,054,020 - 6,054,020 3,579,218 - 3,579,218
Total Trade and other payables 10,643,421 - 10,643,421 6,128,103 - 6,128,103
Financial Instruments
Other financial liabilities 6(d) 1,348,963 174,288 1,523,251 - 1,382,298 1,382,298
Total Financial instruments 1,348,963 174,288 1,523,251 - 1,382,298 1,382,298
Total financial liabilities 11,992,384 174,288 12,166,672 6,128,103 1,382,298 7,510,401

6(a) Cash and cash equivalents

Recognition and measurement

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject

to an insignificant risk of change in value.
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6. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

6(a) Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

Reconciliation of Loss After Income Tax to Net Cash Outflow from Operating Activities

2023 2022
$ $
Loss for the year (68,893,255) (44,340,161)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2,790,023 1,741,920
Non-cash share-based payments expense 8,372,040 4,700,449
Non-cash financing costs 19,000 717,235
Fair value movement of derivatives (33,335) 347,492
Foreign exchange differences 924,442 (2,334,756)
Loss on disposal of patents - 92,765
Gain on disposal of plant and equipment (31,809) (709)
Income tax benefit (187,393) -
Sundry 3,805 (1,813)
Changes in:
Receivables and other assets (1,039,486) (983,951)
Inventories (121,812) 232,844
Trade and other payables 5,511,103 533,861
Provisions 1,254,097 299,633
Net cash outflow from operating activities (51,432,580) (38,995,191)

Non-cash investing and financing activities

The Group had the following non-cash investing and financing activities:

e  The Group recognised an additional $1,572,295 (2022: $1,033,400) of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets during the year.

Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

2023 2022
$ $

Opening balance - Borrowings - 4,682,765
Changes from financing cash flows

Repayment of borrowings (1,203,032) (1,350,000)
Total changes from financing cash flows (1,203,032) (1,350,000)
Other changes

Supplier obligation paid directly by financier 1,150,381 -

Conversion of convertible notes into ordinary shares - (4,050,000)

Interest expense 52,651 -

Amortisation of transaction costs - 717,235
Total other changes 1,203,032 (3,332,765)

Closing balance - Borrowings
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6. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)
6(b) Trade and other receivables

Recognition and measurement

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold in the ordinary course of business. They are generally due for
settlement within 30 days and therefore all classified as current. Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration
that is unconditional. The Company holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Trade receivables are subject to the expected credit loss model. The Company applies the AASB 9 Financial Instruments simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. Indicators that
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the
Company, and a failure to make contractual payments for a period greater than 120 days past due. Impairment losses on trade
receivables are presented within operating profit or loss. Subsequent recoveries on amounts previously written off are credited against
the same line item.

Other receivables are recognised at amortised cost, less any expected loss allowance.

The allowance for impairment of receivables is assessed by considering the recent sales experience, the ageing of receivables,
historical collection rates and specific knowledge of the individual debtor’s financial position.

Refer to note 12 for information on the risk management policy of the Group.

Trade receivables

The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

2023 2022
$ $
Not overdue 8,721 603,414
Less than 30 days overdue 221,625 47,397
30 - 60 days overdue 255,848 -
60 - 90 days overdue 109,649 -
Total 595,843 650,811

The Company provides for expected credit losses on a customer-by-customer basis. Impairment losses on trade receivables were nil
in the current year (2022: $nil).

Other receivable
Current Other receivables includes a lease incentive receivable, GST receivable, and security deposits for rental of corporate offices.

Non-current other receivables represent a holdback receivable of $610,047 from LeMaitre Vascular, Inc. Refer to note 17 for further
details.

6(c) Trade and other payables
Recognition and measurement

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial year and which
are unpaid. Due to their short-term nature, they are measured at amortised cost and are not discounted. The amounts are
unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

Refer to note 12 for information on the risk management policy of the Group.
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6. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)
6(d) Other financial liabilities

2023 2022

$ $
Current
Warrant 1,348,963 _

1,348,963 -
Non-current
Warrant = 1,382,298
Other variable liabilities 174,288 -

174,288 1,382,298

Warrants

In conjunction with receiving a loan facility from Partners For Growth (“PFG”) in October 2017, Anteris Technologies Ltd issued PFG
warrants expiring on 26 October 2024 for the issue of 49,388 ordinary shares in the Company at an exercise price of AUDS$25.31 per
share. The holder of the warrants also has the option to put the warrants to the Company for AUD$1,500,000 on expiry or on the
occurrence of certain events. Both these components need to be considered when determining the valuation of the warrant.

The value of the call option component of the warrant in relation to the issue of the shares has been determined using a Black Scholes
pricing model that incorporates a share price hurdle. The share price hurdle reflects the fact the call option will only be exercised in
circumstances where the value that can be derived from exercising the call option exceeds the value that can be derived from the put
option. The value of the put option is determined having regard to a discounted cash flow methodology to calculate its risk-adjusted
present value.

The key judgemental inputs used in the measurement of the fair values at reporting date are as follows:

2023 2022
Volatility 55.0% 70.0%
Put option discount rate 14.75% 14.75%

Other variable liabilities

The agreement with v2vmedtech, inc. (‘'v2Vv’) included variable payments for the intangible assets acquired which are dependent on the
entity’s future activities. At acquisition date, the fair value of the variable payments was included in the initial cost of the intangible
assets with a corresponding liability. Subsequent changes in the estimated future cash flows are adjusted through the profit or loss and
discounted using the original effective interest rate. Refer to note 15 for details of these liabilities.

Other variable liabilities include anti-dilution rights which are valued taking into account the protection these rights offer the third party
against future dilution and incorporate the v2v company valuation.

Recognition and measurement

The warrants are derivatives with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Refer above for the method and assumptions used in
determining the fair value of the warrants.

The variable liabilities are classified and subsequently measured at amortised cost under the effective interest method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments to the amortised cost of the financial liability. Where there
is a change in the timing or amount of estimated cash flows, the gross carrying amount of the amortised cost of the financial liability is
adjusted in the period of change to reflect the actual and revised estimated cash flows. Subsequent changes in the estimated future
cash flows are adjusted through the profit or loss.
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6. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

6(d) Other financial liabilities (continued)

Supplier financing arrangements

During the year, the Group entered a supplier financing arrangement to fund insurance premiums. Under the arrangement, the insurance
premiums are paid directly by the financier and Anteris recognises a financing cash outflow for the repayment of the borrowing. At the
time of initial recognition, an asset (recognised in Other assets) and a corresponding borrowing is recognised representing both the future
insurance benefits and the obligation to repay respectively. The asset is subsequently expensed on a straight-line basis over the period
of the insurance term. By 31 December 2023, the liability had been fully paid. The supplier obligation paid directly by the financier

totalled $1,150,381.

7. NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
2023 2022
$ $
Non-Financial assets Notes Current Non-current Total Current Non-current Total
Inventories 7(a) 646,713 - 646,713 524,901 - 524,901
Other assets 7(b) 1,901,927 - 1,901,927 1,403,512 - 1,403,512
Plant and equipment 7(c) - 5,881,076 5,881,076 - 3,307,889 3,307,889
Right-of-use assets 7(d) - 1,945,779 1,945,779 - 1,209,268 1,209,268
Intangible assets 7(e) - 1,377,991 1,377,991 - 896,455 896,455
Total non-financial assets 2,548,640 9,204,846 11,753,486 1,928,413 5,413,612 7,342,025
2023 2022
$ $
Non-Financial liabilities Notes Current Non-current Total Current Non-current Total
Lease Liabilities 7(d) 977,967 1,354,938 2,332,905 757,206 649,120 1,406,326
Provisions
Employee benefit provisions 7(f) 676,217 70,405 746,622 655,227 45,375 700,602
Lease make good provisions 7(f) - 688,838 688,838 - 644,300 644,300
Cash-settled share-based 7(f) 178,467 925,656 1,104,123 - - -
payment provision
Total Provisions 854,684 1,684,899 2,539,583 655,227 689,675 1,344,902
Total non-financial liabilities 1,832,651 3,039,837 4,872,488 1,412,433 1,338,795 2,751,228
7(a) Inventories
2023 2022
$ $
Raw materials — at cost 383,234 395,729
Work in progress — at cost 78,263 121,370
Finished goods — at cost 185,216 7,802
646,713 524,901
Provision for write-down of inventory = -
646,713 524,901

There was no write-down of inventories to net realisable value recognised as an expense during the year ended 31 December 2023

(2022: $Nil).
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7. NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)
7(a) Inventories (continued)

Recognition and measurement

Raw materials, work in progress and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value on a weighted average cost
formula. Cost comprises direct materials and delivery costs, direct labour, import duties and other taxes, plus an appropriate proportion
of variable and fixed overhead expenditure based on normal operating capacity. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after
deducting rebates and discounts received or receivable.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The provision for impairment of inventories assessment requires a degree of estimation and judgement. The level of allowance is
assessed by considering the recent sales experience, the ageing of inventories and other factors that affect inventory obsolescence.

7(b) Other assets

Other assets include $1,043,785 for a research and development tax incentive grant to be claimed from the Australian Tax Office in
relation to costs incurred in 2023 (2022: $1,403,512); $383,895 relating to insurance; and $474,247 of materials to be used in R&D
activities.

Research and development tax incentive

Significant judgment is required in determining the amount and timing of recognition of the research and development tax incentive
asset. As the grant requirements are complex, the Group performs detailed analysis over eligible expenditure based on the criteria set
by the relevant taxation authorities and assesses whether there is reasonable assurance that the research and development tax incentive
grant will be received.

7(c) Plant and equipment
2023 2022
$ $

Plant & equipment

Cost 11,073,135 7,149,588
Accumulated depreciation (5,192,059) (3,841,699)
Net book amount 5,881,076 3,307,889
Reconciliation

Opening net book amount 3,307,889 1,666,124
Additions 4,026,034 2,328,228
Disposals (6,041) (5,057)
Depreciation (1,403,637) (766,113)
Exchange rate differences (43,169) 84,707
Closing net book amount 5,881,076 3,307,889
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7. NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

7(c) Plant and equipment (continued)

Recognition and measurement

Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to write off the net cost
of each item of plant and equipment (excluding land) over their expected useful lives as follows:

Plant and equipment 3-10 years
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Leasehold improvements and plant and equipment under lease are depreciated over the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated
useful life of the assets, whichever is shorter.

An item of plant and equipment is de-recognised upon disposal or when there is no future economic benefit to the Group. Gains and
losses between the carrying amount and the disposal proceeds are taken to profit or loss.

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation for its plant and equipment. The useful lives could change
significantly because of technical innovations or some other event. The depreciation charge will increase where the useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives, or technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold will be written off.

7(d) Leases
This note provides information for leases where the group is a lessee.

The Group leases laboratory facilities and offices. These leases typically include leases options to renew the lease at which time the lease
payments are subject to market adjustments and/or set price increases. Extension and termination options are included in a number of
the property leases to allow for flexibility in terms of corporate growth and managing the assets used in the Group’s operations. No
termination options have been included in the lease liability at 31 December 2023. During 2023, the Group extended and/or modified a
number of the existing property leases as well as entering new leases. The new and modified property leases expire between 2025 and
2026 but include options to extend.

The Group leases IT equipment with contract terms of 2-5 years. Most of these leases are of low-value items.
The contractual undiscounted cash flows of lease liabilities are disclosed in note 12(d).
Recognition and measurement

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. At the lease commencement
date, the Group recognises a right-of-use (ROU) asset (the right to use the leased item) and a corresponding lease liability.

The ROU asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. The ROU asset is
subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the end of the lease term. The related lease
liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

The exceptions are short-term leases (being those leases which have a term of 12 months or less or had a remaining term of less than 12
months at the adoption date) and low value leases (being those leases with a value of less than $5,000). The Group recognises the lease
payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lessees are required to discount future lease payments using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, its incremental borrowing rate. Generally, for operating leases, the Group cannot determine the interest rate implicit in the
lease because it does not have access to the lessor’s estimated residual value or the amount of the lessor’s deferred initial direct costs.
Therefore, the Group generally uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate for the lease. The incremental borrowing rate is
the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow an amount equal to the lease payments in a similar economic
environment and on a collateralised basis over a similar term.

Extension and termination options are included in several property leases across the group and are an area of judgement. In determining
the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or
not exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease
is reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated).
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7(d) Leases (continued)

(i) Amounts recognised in the Statement of financial position

The Statement of financial position includes right-of-use assets and lease liabilities relating to leases.

Right-of Use assets reconciliation

Motor

31 DECEMBER 2023 Property IT equipment Vehicles Total

$ $ $ $
Right-of-Use Assets
Cost 4,615,839 62,653 - 4,678,492
Accumulated depreciation (2,687,585) (45,128) - (2,732,713)
Net book amount 1,928,254 17,525 - 1,945,779
Reconciliation
Opening net book value at 1 January 2023 1,163,966 41,495 3,807 1,209,268
Additions and modifications 1,565,145 7,150 - 1,572,295
Derecognition of right-of-use assets - - (3,807) (3,807)
Depreciation charge (800,787) (31,332) - (832,119)
Exchange rate differences (70) 212 - 142
Closing net book amount 1,928,254 17,525 - 1,945,779

Motor

31 DECEMBER 2022 Property IT equipment Vehicles Total

$ $ $ $
Right-of-Use Assets
Cost 3,042,562 113,032 68,520 3,224,114
Accumulated depreciation (1,878,596) (71,537) (64,713) (2,014,846)
Net book amount 1,163,966 41,495 3,807 1,209,268
Reconciliation
Opening net book value at 1 January 2022 714,583 89,633 26,647 830,863
Additions and modifications 1,033,400 - - 1,033,400
Derecognition of right-of-use assets - (7,366) - (7,366)
Depreciation charge (622,032) (42,535) (22,840) (687,407)
Exchange rate differences 38,015 1,763 - 39,778
Closing net book amount 1,163,966 41,495 3,807 1,209,268
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7. NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

7(d) Leases (continued)

(i) Amounts recognised in the Statement of financial position (continued)

Lease liability reconciliation

31 DECEMBER 2023 Property IT equipment Motor Vehicles Total
$ $ $ $

Current lease liabilities 964,629 13,338 - 977,967
Non-current lease liabilities 1,348,920 6,018 - 1,354,938
Total 2,313,549 19,356 - 2,332,905
Reconciliation

Opening net value at 1 January 2023 1,328,727 44,990 32,609 1,406,326
Additions and modifications 1,734,068 7,150 - 1,741,218
Principal repaid (750,596) (33,108) (32,609) (816,313)
Exchange rate differences 1,350 324 - 1,674
Closing net book amount 2,313,549 19,356 - 2,332,905
31 DECEMBER 2022 Property IT equipment Motor Vehicles Total

$ $ $ $

Current lease liabilities 692,445 32,152 32,609 757,206
Non-current lease liabilities 636,282 12,838 - 649,120
Total 1,328,727 44,990 32,609 1,406,326
Reconciliation

Opening net value at 1 January 2022 907,315 92,802 46,583 1,046,700
Additions and modifications 1,033,400 - - 1,033,400
Derecognition of right-of-use assets - (9,180) - (9,180)
Principal repaid (656,487) (42,327) (13,974) (712,788)
Exchange rate differences 44,499 3,695 - 48,194
Closing net book amount 1,328,727 44,990 32,609 1,406,326

(ii) Amounts recognised in the Statement of profit or loss
The Statement of profit or loss shows the following amounts relating to leases:
2023 2022
$ $

Depreciation expense 832,119 687,407
Interest expense (included in financing costs) 311,047 164,721
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets (included in IT and 38,936 47,731

telecommunications expenses)

The total cash outflow for leases in 2023 was $1,166,296 (2022: $925,240).
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7(e) Intangible assets
Intellectual
31 DECEMBER 2023 Patents Software property Total
Note $ $ $ $
Intangible assets
Cost 397,463 154,525 4,516,417 5,068,405
Accumulated depreciation (295,796) (63,277) (3,331,341) (3,690,414)
Net book amount 101,667 91,248 1,185,076 1,377,991
Reconciliation
Opening net book amount 118,982 121,369 656,104 896,455
Additions — external purchases - 10,000 - 10,000
Additions — v2v acquisition 15 - - 1,048,610 1,048,610
Amortisation (17,315) (40,214) (496,738) (554,267)
Exchange rate differences - 93 (22,900) (22,807)
Closing net book amount 101,667 91,248 1,185,076 1,377,991
Intellectual
31 DECEMBER 2022 Patents Software property Total
$ $ $ $
Intangible assets
Cost 397,463 144,900 3,500,000 4,042,363
Accumulated depreciation (278,481) (23,531) (2,843,896) (3,145,908)
Net book amount 118,982 121,369 656,104 896,455
Reconciliation
Opening net book amount 227,860 11,847 905,488 1,145,195
Additions — external purchases - 129,943 - 129,943
Disposals (92,764) - - (92,764)
Amortisation (16,114) (22,902) (249,384) (288,400)
Exchange rate differences - 2,481 - 2,481
Closing net book amount 118,982 121,369 656,104 896,455

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination, other than goodwill, are initially measured at their fair value at the date
of the acquisition. Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at cost. Finite life intangible assets are subsequently
measured at cost less amortisation and any impairment. The gains or losses recognised in profit or loss arising from the de-recognition
of intangible assets are measured as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the intangible asset.

The method and useful lives of finite life intangible assets are reviewed annually. Changes in the expected pattern of consumption or
useful life are accounted for prospectively by changing the amortisation method or period.
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7(e) Intangible assets (continued)

Recognition and measurement (continued)

Research and development

Research costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Development costs are capitalised, up to the stage of
commercialisation, when it is probable that the project will be a success considering its commercial and technical feasibility; the
Group can use or sell the asset; the Group has sufficient resources; and intent to complete the development and its costs can be
measured reliably. Capitalised development costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of their expected benefit. To
date, no research and development costs have been capitalised.

The research and development costs recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss includes the costs of R&D consultants,
trials, materials, testing and regulatory costs associated with the aortic valve replacement research program. Employee costs are
separately disclosed.

Intellectual property

The Group holds intellectual property relating to the ADAPT® tissue engineering technology which was recognised based on an external
valuation following a business combination. It is being amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of its expected benefit, being
14 years.

The intellectual property acquired through the acquisition of v2vmedtech, inc. includes pending patents which are currently being
amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of 3 years.

Patents and trademarks

Significant costs associated with patents and trademarks are capitalised and amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of their
expected benefit, being their finite life of up to 20 years.

Impairment of intangible assets

Intangible assets with definite lives are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is the higher of an intangible asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. The value-in-use is the present
value of the estimated future cash flows relating to the asset using a pre-tax discount rate specific to the asset or cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. Assets that do not have independent cash flows are grouped together to form a cash-generating unit.

The Group assesses impairment of intangible assets at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the Group and to the asset
that may lead to impairment. If an impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined. This involves fair value
less costs of disposal or value-in-use calculations, which incorporate several key estimates and assumptions.

7(f) Provisions
2023 2022
$ $
Current
Provision for annual leave 619,392 602,410
Provision for long service leave 56,825 52,817
Cash-settled share-based payment provision 178,467 -
854,684 655,227
Non-current
Provision for long service leave 70,405 45,375
Lease make good provision 688,838 644,300
Cash-settled share-based payment provision 925,656 -
1,684,899 689,675
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7. NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

7(f) Provisions (continued)

Movements in provisions

Cash-settled

Provision for Lease make share-based

Provision for long service good payment

annual leave leave provision provision Total
Balance at 1 January 2023 602,410 98,192 644,300 - 1,344,902
Provisions made during the year 1,225,927 48,360 43,125 1,164,951 2,482,363
Provisions used during the year (999,698) (9,276) - - (1,008,974)
Provisions reversed during the year (240,234) (10,046) - - (250,280)
Currency translation differences 30,987 - 1,413 (60,828) (28,428)
Balance at 31 December 2023 619,392 127,230 688,838 1,104,123 2,539,583

(i) Recognition and measurement

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present (legal or constructive) obligation due to a past event, it is probable the Group
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised
as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date, considering the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. If the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate specific to the liability. The increase in the provision resulting from the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

(ii) Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and long service leave expected to be settled within
12 months of the reporting date are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

Other long-term employee benefits

The liability for annual leave and long service leave not expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are measured
as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date
using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee
departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on national
government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

Defined contribution superannuation expense

Contributions to defined contribution superannuation plans are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Cash-settled share-based payment provision

Refer to note 20(e) Share-based payments.

(iii) Lease make good

The lease make good provision relates to the removing of leasehold improvements including laboratories, offices and clean rooms in
accordance with the lease agreements.

The calculation of this provision requires assumptions such as application of closure dates and cost estimates. The provision recognised
for each site is periodically reviewed and updated based on the facts and circumstances available at the time. Changes to the estimated
future costs for sites are recognised in the statement of financial position by adjusting the asset and the provision. Reductions in the
provision that exceed the carrying amount of the asset will be recognised in profit or loss.
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8. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

When an asset or liability, financial or non-financial, is measured at fair value for recognition or disclosure purposes, the fair value is
based on the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date; and assumes that the transaction will take place either: in the principal market; or in the absence
of a principal market, in the most advantageous market.

Fair value is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming they act in
their economic best interest. For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement is based on its highest and best use. Valuation
techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, are used,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value are classified, into three levels, using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of
the inputs used in making the measurements. Classifications are reviewed each reporting date and transfers between levels are
determined based on a reassessment of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

For recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements, external valuers may be used when internal expertise is either not available or
when the valuation is deemed to be significant. External valuers are selected based on market knowledge and reputation.

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables detail the Group's assets and liabilities, measured or disclosed at fair value, using a three-level hierarchy, based on
the lowest level of input that is significant to the entire fair value measurement, being:

e Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date.

e  Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly

e Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

Trade and other receivables and trade and other payables are not included in the table below as their carrying amounts are a reasonable
approximation of their fair values.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$ $ $ $

31 December 2023

Liabilities

Warrant - - 1,348,963 1,348,963
Other variable liabilities - - 174,288 174,288
Total liabilities - - 1,523,251 1,523,251
31 December 2022

Liabilities

Warrant - - 1,382,298 1,382,298
Total liabilities - - 1,382,298 1,382,298

For the fair values of the warrant and variable liabilities, no reasonably possible change in the inputs at the reporting date would have a
material impact on the on the profit or loss. Refer to note 6(d) for the description of the warrant valuation process and inputs used by
Anteris.
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8. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for level 3 fair values:

Other variable

Warrant liabilities
Note $ $
Balance at 1 January 2022 - -
Transfer into level 3 1,210,398 -
Loss included in profit or loss: fair value movement of derivatives (unrealised) 171,900 -
Balance at 31 December 2022 1,382,298 -
Recognised upon acquisition of subsidiary 15 - 160,656
Profit included in profit or loss: fair value movement of derivatives (unrealised) (33,335) -
Loss included in profit or loss: financing costs - 13,632
Balance at 31 December 2023 1,348,963 174,288
9. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
(a) Share Capital
NUMBER S

2023 2022 2023 2022

Ordinary shares, fully paid 17,820,149 13,901,883 282,988,241 211,832,403

The Company does not have authorised capital or par value in respect of its issued shares. All ordinary shares rank equally. Holders of
these shares are entitled to dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at general meetings of the

Company.

(b) Movements in Ordinary Share Capital

Details Date Notes No. shares $ per share S

Balance 1JAN 2022 11,093,845 172,638,045
Exercise of unlisted EIP options 3,672 496 18,204
Exercise of unlisted options 646,152 10.00 6,461,520
Exercise of unlisted options 70,834 11.50 814,591
Share placement 1,840,000 15.00 27,600,000
Exercise of convertible notes 116,883 15.10 1,764,933
Exercise of convertible notes 71,571 20.60 1,474,363
Exercise of convertible notes 58,926 26.60 1,567,432
Transaction costs (506,685)
Balance 31 DEC 2022 13,901,883 211,832,403
Exercise of unlisted EIP options i 168 8.19 1,376
Exercise of unlisted options ii 160,250 10.00 1,602,500
Exercise of unlisted options i 134,364 11.50 1,545,186
Exercise of unlisted options ii 500,000 15.00 7,500,000
Share placement jii 1,458,334 24.00 35,000,016
Share placement jii 1,664,150 20.00 33,283,000
Share placement to consultant iv 1,000 21.50 21,500
Transaction costs % (7,797,740)
Balance 31 DEC 2023 17,820,149 282,988,241
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9.
(b)

(c)

CONTRIBUTED EQUITY (continued)
Movements in Ordinary Share Capital (continued)
Exercise of unlisted EIP options

During the period, unlisted options issued under the Anteris Employee Incentive Plan (‘EIP’) were exercised. These options had
various exercise prices and expiry dates with a weighted average exercise price of $8.19.

Exercise of unlisted options

During the period, investors exercised the following options:

- 160,250 unlisted options were exercised for $10.00 per share raising $1,602,500.
- 134,364 unlisted options were exercised for $11.50 per share raising $1,545,186.
- 500,000 unlisted options were exercised for $15.00 per share raising $7,500,000.

Share placement

On 15 February 2023, 1,454,167 new shares and 1,454,167 free-attaching options were issued to various sophisticated and
professional investors for total consideration of $34,900,008. The consideration received for both the shares and free-attaching
options has been reflected as an increase in share capital.

On 31 May 2023, 4,167 new shares and 4,167 free-attaching options were issued to Wayne Paterson (CEO, Managing Director)
for consideration of $100,008, which is on the same terms as other investors who participated in the above capital raise.
Shareholder approval had been obtained at the Company’s Annual General Meeting on 29 May 2023.

On 2 November 2023 and 16 November 2023, a total of 1,664,150 new shares were issued to various sophisticated and
professional investors for total consideration of $33,283,000.

Share placement to consultant

On 17 April 2023, 1,000 shares were issued as compensation for expert advisory services received. No amounts were payable for
the issue of the ordinary shares.

Transaction costs
Transaction costs include cash payments and options granted for legal, share transfer services, and lead manager services

provided.

Recognition and measurement

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the

proceedsS.

(d)

Capital Risk Management

The Company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the ability to continue as a going concern and to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Board and
Executive have developed a detailed Capital Management Plan to set the short to medium term strategy on the management of the
Company’s capital.

The Board of Directors monitors capital including cash held, projected timing for net cash outflows including operational uses,
repayment of loans and borrowings, and conversion of options as part of each Board meeting or more frequently as required. No
formal targets are in place for return on capital or gearing.
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10. EQUITY — RESERVES

(a) Reserves

2023 2022
$ $
Share-based payments 23,930,921 11,797,873
Other reserve (6,885,884) (6,885,884)
Foreign currency translation reserve (1,006,960) (1,506,849)
16,038,077 3,405,140

(b) Share-based payments

Refer to Note 20 for details of share-based payments.
(c) Nature and purpose

Share-based payments reserve

The share-based payments reserve is used to recognise the change in equity associated with a share-based payment.

Other reserve

The Other reserve reflects the additional consideration paid by the Company to acquire a portion of the remaining non-controlling
interests of a subsidiary plus the value of options issued to external investors for nil consideration.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve is used to recognise exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations to Australian dollars, in addition to exchange differences on an entity’s net investment in foreign
operations.

11. LOSS PER SHARE

(a) Calculation of loss per share
2023 2022
" emominator m caeulaing besc nd dited o per shre tumoer s R
Loss for the year, attributable to the owners of the Company $ (67,333,386) (44,340,161)
Basic and diluted loss per share $ 4.31 3.32

(b) Information concerning classification of securities

No adjustments for the calculation of diluted earnings per share have been disclosed given that the potential shares are antidilutive.
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12, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks (including interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk). The Group’s
overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of the financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the financial performance of the Group. The Group uses different methods to measure different types of risk to which it is
exposed. These methods include sensitivity analysis in the case of interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk, and ageing analysis for
credit risk.

Risk management is carried out by the Group with assistance as required from suitably qualified external advisors. Interest rate risk is
managed for financial assets by investing in higher yielding term deposits with large financial institutions. Credit risk is monitored by
regular age analysis of debtors as well as the initial assessment of the credit worthiness of counterparties.

The Group holds the following financial instruments:

2023 2022
$ $

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 30,831,932 13,805,328
Trade and other receivables 1,880,309 831,992

32,712,241 14,637,320
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 10,643,421 6,128,103
Lease liabilities 2,332,905 1,406,326
Warrants 1,348,963 1,382,298
Other variable liabilities 174,288 -

14,499,577 8,916,727
Net financial assets 18,212,664 5,720,593

(a) Market Risk
Interest rate risk

The Group’s primary interest rate risk arises from cash and cash equivalents held. Term deposits and current accounts held with variable
interest rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group periodically places cash not required for immediate or short-
term operational requirements on deposit for varying lengths to maximise interest returns and achieve greater certainty over returns.

The following sets out the Group’s exposure to interest rate risk, including the effective weighted average interest rate:

2023 2022
Financial assets Notes  Weighted average Total Weighted average Total
interest rate S interest rate S
Cash and cash equivalents 6(a) 3.76% 30,831,932 0.78% 13,805,328

Sensitivity

At 31 December 2023, if interest rates had increased by 50 basis points or decreased by 50 basis points (without dropping below nil
interest rate) from the year end rates with all other variables held constant, the impact on post-tax loss for the year based on the
closing cash balance would have been $151,748 lower/$151,748 higher (31 December 2022 changes 50 basis points: $59,368
lower/$59,368 higher), mainly because of higher/lower interest income from cash and cash equivalents.
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12. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Credit Risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financial
institutions, as well as credit exposures to customers, including outstanding receivables and committed transactions. For banks and
financial institutions, only independently rated parties with a minimum acceptable credit rating are utilised. The credit risk of new
customers is assessed at the time of a proposed transaction. The Group’s current customers have a strong history of collectability but
are regularly monitored by management for balances in arrears.

(c) Foreign currency risk management
The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures.

The Group regularly monitors the level of foreign currency exposure and where appropriate, uses natural hedges to manage significant
exposures.

The Group’s manufacturing facilities are based in Australia, and the sales for the ADAPT® business are denominated in AUD and USD
(2022: AUD and USD). The USD sales create an AUD denominated foreign exchange risk.

The summary quantitative data about the Groups’ exposure to foreign exchange risk at the end of the reporting period, expressed in
Australian Dollars is as follows:

2023 2022
In AUD S S
Currency
usb 12,091,940 7,495,692
CHF (4,715,135) (1,758,027)
AUD? (28,101,428) (17,650,468)

! The foreign currency risk exposure relates to AUD balances held in subsidiary entities with non-AUD functional currencies.

Sensitivity

A 10% strengthening/(weakening) of the US dollar, Swiss franc or Australian dollar against all other currencies at 31 December would
have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency and affected profit or (loss) by the amounts
shown below.

2023 2022
Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening
In AUD $ $ $ $
Currency
usD 1,343,549 (1,099,267) 832,854 (681,427)
CHF (523,904) 428,648 (195,337) 159,820
AUD (3,122,381) 2,554,675 (1,961,163) 1,604,588
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12. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d) Liquidity Risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash balances and access to equity and debt funding.

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to cash assets and floating interest rates. The
Group does not have significant interest-bearing liabilities with variable rates and is not materially exposed to changes in market

interest rates. The Board of Directors monitors capital including cash held, projected timing for net cash outflows including operational
uses, repayment of loans and borrowings, and conversion of options as part of each Board meeting or more frequently as required.

The Group held various financial liabilities at reporting date. Trade payables incurred in the normal course of the business were non-
interest bearing and were due within the normal terms of creditor payments. The Company issued warrants expiring on 26 October
2024 for which the holder can convert the warrants to shares or to put that warrant to the Company for $1,500,000.

Maturities of financial liabilities

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the
reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. It is
not expected that the cash flows included in the below maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at significantly different
amounts.

Total Carrying
Less than 6-12 Over 5 contractual amount
6 months months 1-2 years 2-5 years years cash flows liabilities
$ $ $ $ $ $ $

At 31 December 2023
Non-derivatives
Trade and other payables 10,643,420 - - - - 10,643,420 10,643,420
Lease liabilities 623,340 626,247 1,180,392 305,911 - 2,735,890 2,332,905
Total non-derivatives 11,266,760 626,247 1,180,392 305,911 - 13,379,310 12,976,325
Derivatives
Warrant - 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 1,348,963
Total derivatives - 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 1,348,963

At 31 December 2022

Non-derivatives

Trade and other payables 6,128,103 - - - - 6,128,103 6,128,103
Lease liabilities 458,964 450,603 395,734 354,282 - 1,659,583 1,406,326
Total non-derivatives 6,587,067 450,603 395,734 354,282 - 7,787,686 7,534,429
Derivatives

Warrant - - 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 1,382,298
Total derivatives - - 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 1,382,298
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12. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(e) Fair Value Estimation

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement or for disclosure purposes.

The carrying value less impairment provision of receivables as well as trade payables are assumed to approximate their fair values
due to their short-term nature.

The Group’s principal financial instruments consist of cash and deposits with banks, accounts receivable, trade payables and loans
payable. The main purpose of these non-derivative financial instruments is to finance the entity’s operations.
13. CONTROLLED ENTITIES

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of the following subsidiaries in accordance with
the accounting policy. The proportion of ownership interest is equal to the proportion of voting power held.

Equity Holding
Name of entity Class of Country of 2023 2022
share Incorporation % %

Accounting Parent Entity
Anteris Technologies Investments Pty Ltd Ordinary Australia 100 100

Legal Parent Entity
Anteris Technologies Ltd Ordinary Australia - -

Controlled Entities

Admedus (NZ) Limited Ordinary New Zealand 100 100
Admedus (Australia) Pty Limited Ordinary Australia 100 100
Anteris Aus Operations Pty Ltd Ordinary Australia 100 100
Anteris Technologies Corporation Ordinary USA 100 100
Anteris Technologies Sarl Ordinary Switzerland 100 100
Admedus Biomanufacturing Pty Ltd Ordinary Australia 100 100
Anteris Technologies Asia Pte Ltd Ordinary Singapore 100 100
v2vmedtech, inc. Ordinary USA 30 -
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14. PARENT ENTITY INFORMATION
The following details information related to the legal parent entity, Anteris Technologies Ltd at 31 December 2023.

The financial information presented below has been prepared on the same basis as the consolidated financial statements except that
investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost, less impairment. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

PARENT COMPANY
2023 2022
$ $
Statement of financial position
Current assets 32,238,619 12,989,233
Non-current assets 940,015 308,036
Total assets 33,178,634 13,297,269
Current liabilities (3,995,486) (1,820,167)
Non-current liabilities (336,588) (1,475,359)
Total liabilities (4,332,074) (3,295,526)
Contributed equity 307,344,411 236,188,573
Reserves (105,454,663) (63,084,333)
Accumulated losses (163,102,497) (155,064,528)
Loss for the year (9,940,691) (8,037,969)
Total equity 28,846,560 10,001,743
Statement of comprehensive income
Loss for the year (9,940,691) (8,037,969)
Other comprehensive loss for the year - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year (9,940,691) (8,037,969)

Contingent liabilities of the parent entity

There were no contingent liabilities in relation to the current reporting period.

Commitments of the parent entity

The parent entity had no capital commitments for plant and equipment as at 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).

15. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY

On 18 April 2023, the Group entered into a series of agreements with v2vmedtech, inc. (‘v2v’) to develop an innovative heart valve
repair device for the minimally invasive treatment of mitral and tricuspid valve regurgitation.

The Group has applied judgement in accounting for the transaction. The Group holds 30% of v2v’s shares, holds 2 out of 3 board
positions and has appointed the CEO and CFO. In addition, the agreements establish that the research and development activities are
to be directed by Anteris with Anteris using its own employees, resources, laboratory facilities, and other internal resources. Since
Anteris holds existing rights allowing it to control the activities that significantly impact the investee’s returns, v2v is being recognised
as a subsidiary of the Group for accounting purposes.
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15. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY (continued)

The Group has concluded that the transaction is an asset acquisition (rather than a business combination) on the basis that at the time
of acquisition, v2v did not have an integrated set of activities and assets that were capable of being conducted and managed for the
purpose of generating income. Total consideration of $377,063 was paid, including transaction costs. The following assets and
liabilities have been recognised as a result of the transaction:

Note S
Intangibles * 7(e) 1,048,610
Anti-dilution rights 24 (103,080)
Break right liability >4 (38,268)
Contingent consideration * (19,308)

External shareholders hold 70% interest in v2v resulting in a non-controlling interest of $510,891 being recognised at acquisition date.

1 v2v has an exclusive and non-exclusive license to a pending patent which relates to the delivery of certain devices into the body. v2v

also holds a pending patent relating to removable clips.

Subject to certain requirements, the equity issued by v2v to the licensor in relation to the assignment of the above-mentioned license
cannot be diluted below a specified level for a specified period of time.

In the event that Anteris decides to discontinue its involvement in v2v, the initial shareholders of v2v will have the right to acquire
all of Anteris’ interests in v2v for a purchase price equal to Anteris’ aggregate Development and Operational Contributions at such
time. Alternatively, the initial shareholders of v2v may instead elect to reduce Anteris’ equity in v2v on a fully diluted basis to a
specified percentage.

Recognised as ‘Other variable liabilities’ in note 6(d). Movement in the liabilities since acquisition date has been recorded to operating
loss.

The agreement provided Anteris Technologies Corporation with a contractual right of up to a further 27% to 29% interest in v2v post the
earlier of the first use of a v2v device in a First-in-human trial or contributions reaching SUSIOM. Anteris was also granted a call option
to purchase all remaining issued and outstanding shares of v2v. The option can be exercised at the higher of fair market value and
SUS150M. No value has currently been attributed to this option.

16. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The following table summarises financial information for each subsidiary that has non-controlling interests (‘NCI’) that are material to
the group. The amounts disclosed for each subsidiary are before inter-company eliminations. v2v became a controlled entity on 17
April 2023 (see note 15). Accordingly, the information relating to v2v is for the period from 17 April to 31 December 2023. Balance
sheet amounts are as at 31 December 2023.

During the year, the Group made non-reciprocal contributions to v2v totalling $1,588,721. This resulted in a reduction to the equity
attributable to owners of the Company of $1,071,151.

v2vmedtech, inc.

2023

NCI percentage 70% S

Current assets 36,550
Non-current assets 736,922
Current liabilities (550,379)
Non-current liabilities (137,195)
Net assets 85,898
Net assets attributable to NCI 60,129
Revenue -
Total loss 2,228,385
Other comprehensive income (54,223)
Total comprehensive loss 2,174,162
Loss allocated to NCI 1,559,869
Other comprehensive income allocated to NCI (37,956)
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16. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

v2vmedtech, inc. 2023

Cashflows from operating activities -
Cashflows from investment activities -

Cashflows from financing activities 36,550

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 36,550

17. COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2023, the Group had no commitments to purchase plant and equipment (2022: $1,238,435).

18. CONTINGENCIES
Contingent asset

Anteris Technologies Ltd sold the distribution rights to its CardioCel™ and VascuCel™ product range to LeMaitre Vascular, Inc.
(‘LeMaitre’) on 11 October 2019. During the year, the manufacturing agreement has been extended with the agreement now
contracted to conclude in January 2025.

Under the revised agreement, LeMaitre is responsible for obtaining regulatory approvals under the European Medical Devices
Directorate Regulation. Anteris is entitled to receive a holdback amount of SUS2.0 million less the associated regulatory approval costs
incurred by LeMaitre (capped at €600k) payable in the following instalments:

1. Anteris is entitled to 33% of the holdback amount by 26 January 2025 if LeMaitre do not obtain the regulatory approvals for
either the CardioCel™ and VascuCel™ by 11 January 2025. The payment will be reduced by 33% of the eligible deductions. The
first instalment has been recognised as a non-current receivable as at 31 December 2023 (note 6(b)).

2. The remaining 67% of the holdback amount will be due on the following basis with the eligible deductions applied on a
proportional to those activities:

a. 75% when LeMaitre receive the CardioCel™ regulatory approval; and
b. 25% when LeMaitre receive the VascuCel™ regulatory approval.

The second holdback entitlement, which is a contingent receipt, has not been recognised as revenue as it is too early to
determine that the amount is virtually certain to be received.

Contingent liabilities

There were no contingent liabilities in relation to the current reporting period.

19. EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any item, transaction or event of
a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the Directors of the Company, to significantly affect the operations of the Group,
the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Group, in future financial years.
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20. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The below table provides an analysis of the types of share-based payments expense recognised during the year.

2023 2022
$ $
Equity-settled share-based payments 7,036,530 4,700,449
Modification of equity-settled share-based payments 1,314,010 -
Cash-settled share-based payments 1,164,951 -
Shares issued as compensation to consultants 21,500 -
9,536,991 4,700,449

(a) Share Options

The number and weighted-average exercise prices of equity-settled share options under share-based payment arrangements were as
follows:

2023 2022
Number of Weighted- Number of Weighted-
options average exercise options average exercise
$ $
Outstanding at 1 January 2,372,124 11.92 1,571,648 11.31
Granted during the year 1,532,300 25.61 847,250 13.11
Forfeited during the year (14,581) 16.34 (3,852) 13.99
Exercised during the year (225,168) 9.49 (33,672) 4.96
Expired during the year - - (9,250) 25.78
Outstanding at 31 December 3,664,675 17.49 2,372,124 11.92
Exercisable at 31 December 2,012,975 15.80 1,387,255 11.69

The options outstanding at 31 December 2023 had an exercise price in the range of $3.50 to $37.00 (2022: $3.50 to $37.00) and a
weighted-average contractual life of 4.5 years (2022: 4.6 years). Of these options, 34,995 were issued before 31 December 2018
(2022: 34,995) and have exercise prices between $30.00 and $37.00 (2022: $30.00 and $37.00). Options subsequently issued have
exercise prices between $3.50 and $29.00 (2022: $3.50 and $22.84) and a weighted average contractual life of 4.5 years (2022: 4.5
years).

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised in 2023 was $19.43 (2022: $22.01).

Employee share options

The Anteris Employee Incentive Plan (EIP) has been approved by shareholders. Eligible employees can participate in the Plan.

The key terms of the EIP Options include:

- Options are issued to selected Eligible Employees for nil cost;

- The allotment of options is at the discretion of the Board of Directors;

- Shares allotted on the exercise of the options are to be issued at an exercise price determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion;

- Options vest in three equal tranches over 1, 2 and 3 years subject to the holder still being employed by the Group;

- Options expire 5 years after the grant date under the new plan, and 10 years under the old plan;

- All options expire on the earlier of their expiry date or 90 days after the termination of the individual’s employment;

- Options are unlisted and not transferable unless the Directors in their absolute discretion agree to a transfer; and

- Options carry no dividend rights or voting rights.

The Company granted 13,800 EIP options during the year (2022: 387,250) which were split as follows:

- 2,000 options at an exercise price of $22.61
- 5,050 options at an exercise price of $21.95
- 3,000 options at an exercise price of $20.65
- 3,750 options at an exercise price of $19.73

During the year, 14,581 EIP options were cancelled or lapsed (2022: 13,102) and 168 EIP options were exercised (2022: 3,672).
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Director share options

On 15 September 2023 following approval by shareholders at an Extraordinary General Meeting held on 6 September 2023, the
Company issued 1,018,500 options with an exercise price of $24.00 per share to the following Directors:

- John Seaberg (Chair) — 157,500 options

- Wayne Paterson (CEO) — 700,000 options

- Stephen Denaro (Non-Executive Director and Company Secretary) — 80,500 options
- Wenyi Gu (Non-Executive Director) — 80,500 options

The above Director share options expire after 5 years, vest in three tranches on the completion of at least 12, 24 and 36 months of
service commencing from the date of issue. These options were not awarded as part of the existing Employee Incentive Plan. There
were no performance conditions attached to the Director options issued.

Modification of Director options

On 20 March 2020 following approval by shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting on 26 February 2020, the Company issued
350,000 options to Wayne Paterson (CEO), 60,000 options to John Seaberg (Chairman) and 25,000 options to Stephen Denaro (Non-
Executive Director and Company Secretary) at an exercise price of $11.20. In the prior year, 289,500 of the 435,000 options vested
upon achievement of share price performance hurdles. The remaining options are only exercisable when the Company’s share price
reaches $33.60 for at least 10 out of 20 sequential days. On 17 February 2023, the Board of Directors exercised their discretion to
extend the period to achieve the share price hurdle, by an additional 12 months, from 19 March 2023 to 19 March 2024.

(b) Shares and Options Granted to Consultants

The Company issued shares as compensation for expert advisory services received. No amounts were payable for the issue of the
ordinary shares.

The Company granted options as consideration for lead manager services and underwriting services provided, with the value of the
issues being recognised as an equity transaction cost.

During the year, 225,000 of the options issued to consultants in prior years were exercised (2022: 30,000).

(c) Share Price Performance Rights (Cash-settled)

During the year, the Company established a Share Price Performance Plan (SPP) which provides employees with the right to receive
cash payments calculated by considering the rise in Anteris’ share price from the base price specified at grant date. The SPP rights
expire after 5 years. There are two types of arrangements:

- Service based conditions: employees have the right to receive cash payments after 1, 2 and 3 years from the grant date subject
to the holder still being employed by the Group. The cash payments are calculated by considering the rise in Anteris’ share
price from the base price specified at grant date to the vesting date.

- Service and performance conditions: the SPP rights are divided into three equal tranches which vest and become exercisable
on the earlier of the achievement of specified share price hurdles and the completion of 3 years’ service. The cash payments
are calculated by considering the rise in Anteris’ share price from the base price specified at grant date to the exercise date.

2023 2022
Note $ $
Total carrying amount of liabilities for SPPs 7(f) 1,104,123 -

Total intrinsic value of liabilities for vested benefits - -

In September 2023, the Group granted 850,000 of the service based SPP rights. In November 2023, the Group granted 700,000 of
the SPP rights with service and performance conditions.
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20. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(d) Measurement of fair values

(i) Equity-settled share-based payment arrangements
Employee, Director and Consultant share options

The fair value of the above listed EIP, Director and Consultant options granted during the period has been determined using a Black-
Scholes option pricing model that considers the exercise price, the term of the option, the share price at grant date and expected price
volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk-free interest rate for the term of the option based on
government bonds. The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility (based on the remaining life of the options), adjusted
for any expected changes to future volatility due to publicly available information.

Modification of Director options

Where a modification of the Director options results in an increase in the fair value of the options measured immediately before and
after the modification, the incremental fair value is recognised in the amount recognised for services received. The fair value of the
director options that were modified during the period have been calculated at the date of modification using the Monte Carlo
simulation pricing model using market information and excluding the impact of non-market conditions.

The incremental fair value of these options was $9.03 per option, resulting in an increased fair value of $1,314,010. The inputs used to
calculate the value of the options are detailed below. The value was expensed at the date of the modification as the change was related
to a non-vesting condition.

Shares issued to consultant

The fair value of the shares issued to consultants for expert advisory services received during the period was determined with reference
to the share price on grant date (refer note 9).

Inputs to equity-settled share-based payment arrangements

The weighted average inputs (based on number of options granted or modified) used in the measurement of the fair values of the
above options at grant or modification date are shown in the below table. The inputs for the EIP options have been aggregated given
the small volume of options issued.

Modification of

EIP options Director options 2020 director Consultant options
options

Option pricing model used Black-Scholes Black-Scholes Monte Carlo Black-Scholes
Quantity of options 13,800 1,018,500 145,500 500,000
Weighted average fair value per option
(incremental value for modification) $11.17 $10.68 $9.03 $7.57
Key input assumptions:
Share price at grant or modification date $21.83 $20.80 $22.20 $24.04
Exercise price $21.16 $24.00 $11.20 $29.00
Expected volatility 67.3% 75.0% 65.0% 64.8%
Expected life 3.5 years 3.5 years 2.1 years 2.0 years
Risk-free interest rate 3.6% 3.8% 3.5% 3.3%
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20. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(d) Measurement of fair values (continued)

(iij)  Cash-settled share-based payment arrangements
Share Price Performance Rights (Cash-settled)

The fair value of the SPP rights without share hurdles is determined using a Black-Scholes option pricing model that considers the base
price, the term of the right, the share price and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the
risk-free interest rate for the term of the right. The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility (based on the remaining
life of the rights), adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility due to publicly available information. The fair value is
remeasured at each reporting date and ultimately at settlement date.

The valuation of the SPP rights containing share price hurdle market conditions is determined using the Monte Carlo pricing model
which estimates the fair values by generating numerous future scenarios and incorporating the various variables to simulate a range
of potential outcomes. The average value of these simulations is the fair value applied to the performance based SPP rights at the
valuation date.

Given the range of potential vesting outcomes, management must exercise judgement in determining which assumptions to
incorporate when valuing the SPP rights.

The inputs used in the measurement of the fair values at grant date (date of shared understanding) and reporting date of the SPP rights
were as follows:

Service based SPP Service and performance based SPP
Grant date Reporting date Grant date Reporting date
19-20 Sept 2023 31 Dec 2023 2 Nov 2023 31 Dec 2023

Weighted average fair value per right $5.48 $4.39 $8.83 $7.89
Share price at measurement date $20.03 $19.15 $20.00 $19.15
Base price $24.00 $24.00 $24.00 $24.00
Expected volatility (weighted average) 57.5% 57.5% 60.0% 60.0%
Expected life (weighted average) 2.0 years 1.7 years 3.9 years 3.7 years
Risk-free interest rate 4.0% 3.7% 4.4% 3.8%

(based on government bonds)

(e) Recognition and measurement

Equity-settled and cash-settled share-based compensation benefits are provided to employees in exchange for rendering of
services.

Equity-settled share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions are awards of shares, or options over shares that are provided to employees. The
cost of equity-settled transactions provided under the EIP are measured at fair value on grant date. Fair value is determined using
either the Binomial or Black-Scholes option pricing model that takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the
impact of dilution, the share price at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend
yield and the risk-free interest rate for the term of the option. No account is taken of any other vesting conditions.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised as an expense with a corresponding increase in equity over the vesting period. The
cumulative charge to profit or loss is calculated based on the grant date fair value of the award, the best estimate of the number of
awards that are likely to vest and the expired portion of the vesting period. Forfeitures are estimated at the time of grant and the
Company reassesses the probability of vesting at each quarter end and adjusts the share-based compensation expense based on its
probability assessment. The amount recognised in profit or loss for the period is the cumulative amount calculated at each reporting
date less amounts already recognised in previous periods.
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20. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(e) Recognition and measurement (continued)
Equity-settled share-based payments (continued)

Market conditions are taken into consideration in determining fair value. Therefore, any awards subject to market conditions are
considered to vest irrespective of whether that market condition has been met, provided all other conditions are satisfied. For options
with service conditions, the expense is recognised over the service period. Stock-based compensation expense is recorded net of estimate
forfeitures.

If equity-settled awards are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the modification has not been made. An additional
expense is recognised, over the remaining vesting period, for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based
compensation benefit as at the date of modification.

If the non-vesting condition is within the control of the Group or employee, the failure to satisfy the condition is treated as a cancellation.
If the condition is not within the control of the Group or employee and is not satisfied during the vesting period, any remaining expense
for the award is recognised over the remaining vesting period, unless the award is forfeited.

If equity-settled awards are cancelled, it is treated as if it has vested on the date of cancellation, and any remaining expense is recognised
immediately. If a new replacement award is substituted for the cancelled award, the cancelled and new award is treated as if they were
a modification.

Cash-settled share-based payments

Cash-settled share-based payment transactions provide employees with the right to cash payments upon the satisfaction of vesting
conditions.

The fair value of the provision for the SPP rights obligation is recognised as an expense with a corresponding increase in liabilities, over
the period during which the employees become unconditionally entitled to payment via cash. Upon satisfaction of the vesting conditions
attached to the SPP rights, the provision becomes a payable. The liability is remeasured at each reporting date and at settlement date
based on the fair value of the SPP. Any changes in the liability are recognised in profit or loss.

21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) Parent Entity

The Legal parent entity within the Group is Anteris Technologies Ltd.

(b) Subsidiaries
Interests in subsidiaries are set out in note 13.

The Company may provide letters of support to its subsidiary companies when required.

(c) Key Management Personnel compensation

2023 2022
$ $
Short-term employee benefits 3,976,167 3,410,247
Post-employment benefits 82,163 74,363
Termination benefits - -
Share-based benefits 7,746,528 4,088,915
11,804,858 7,573,525

Compensation of the Group’s key management personnel includes salaries, short-term incentives, share-based payments,
superannuation/pension and non-cash benefits. All other remuneration items remained unchanged.
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22, DIVIDENDS

No dividends have been declared or paid during the year.

Recognition and measurement

Dividends are recognised when declared during the financial year and no longer at the discretion of the Company.
23. REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

During the year, the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditor of the parent entity, its related practices
and non-related audit firms:

2023 2022
$ $

Audit and review services
Auditors of the Group — KPMG

Audit and review of financial reports 162,000 135,000
Assurance services
Auditors of the Group — KPMG

Other assurance services — Audit of US GAAP financial reporting 48,500 455,000
Other services
Auditors of the Group — KPMG

Risk advisory services - 30,000

Tax services 1,100 -

The Company engages KPMG on assignments additional to their statutory audit duties where their expertise and experience with
the Group are important, but only if it would not compromise their independence.

24. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements to
the extent they have not been disclosed in the other notes above. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations regardless of whether equity instruments or other
assets are acquired.

The consideration transferred is the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred, equity instruments issued or
liabilities incurred by the acquirer to former owners of the acquiree and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. For
each business combination, the non-controlling interest in the acquiree is measured at either fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. All acquisition costs are expensed as incurred to profit or loss.

On the acquisition of a business, the Group assesses the financial assets acquired and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic conditions, the Group's operating or accounting policies and other
pertinent conditions in existence at the acquisition-date.

Where the business combination is achieved in stages, the Group re-measures its previously held equity interest in the acquiree
at the acquisition-date fair value and the difference between the fair value and the previous carrying amount is recognised in
profit or loss.

Contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value on the acquisition-date. Subsequent changes
in the fair value of contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration classified as equity is not re-measured and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

63



ANTERIS TECHNOLOGIES LTD
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
24, SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(a) Business combinations (continued)

The difference between the acquisition-date fair value of assets acquired, liabilities assumed and any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the consideration transferred and the fair value of any pre-existing investment in the acquiree is
recognised as goodwill. If the consideration transferred and the pre-existing fair value is less than the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired, being a bargain purchase to the acquirer, the difference is recognised as a gain directly in profit or loss by the acquirer
on the acquisition-date, but only after a reassessment of the identification and measurement of the net assets acquired, the non-
controlling interest in the acquiree, if any, the consideration transferred and the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the
acquirer.

Business combinations are initially accounted for on a provisional basis. The Company retrospectively adjusts the provisional amounts
recognised and recognises additional assets or liabilities during the measurement period, based on new information obtained about
the facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition-date. The measurement period ends on either the earlier of (i) 12 months
from the date of the acquisition; or (ii) when the Company receives all the information possible to determine fair value.

Reverse Acquisition

In accordance with AASB 3 Business Combinations, when Anteris Technologies Ltd (“the legal parent” or “Anteris Technologies”)
acquired Anteris Technologies Investments Pty Ltd (“the legal subsidiary” or “Anteris Investments”), the acquisition was deemed to be
a reverse acquisition. The substance of the transaction was that the existing shareholders of Anteris Investments (the accounting
acquirer) had effectively obtained control of Anteris Technologies.

Under reverse acquisition accounting, the consolidated financial statements are issued under the name of the legal parent (being
Anteris Technologies) but are a continuation of the financial statements of the deemed accounting acquirer being Anteris Investments.

At the date of acquisition, the assets and liabilities of the Anteris Investments group were recognised and measured in the consolidated
financial statements at their pre-combination carrying amounts and added to the assets and liabilities of Anteris Technologies (the legal
parent) which had been recognised and measured in accordance with AASB 3 Business Combinations (generally fair value).

In contrast to the above, the share capital on issue in the consolidated financial statements reflects the share capital of the legal parent,
Anteris Technologies. It was measured on acquisition date by adding the total fair value of the legal parent (Anteris Investments) to the
legal subsidiary’s equity (Anteris Technologies). Fair value of the legal parent was determined as the total fair value of all the issued
equity instruments of Anteris Technologies immediately prior to the business combination.

Retained earnings and equity balances in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date were those of Anteris
Investments immediately prior to the transaction.

(b) Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Australian dollars using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at financial year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Australian dollars using the exchange rates at the reporting
date. The revenues and expenses of foreign operations are translated into Australian dollars using the average exchange rates, which
approximates the rate at the date of the transaction. All resulting foreign exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income through the foreign currency translation reserve in equity. The foreign currency translation reserve is recognised in profit or loss
when the foreign operation or net investment is disposed of.

(c) Current and non-current classification

Assets and liabilities are presented in the statement of financial position based on current and non-current classification. An asset is
current when: it is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; it is held primarily for trading;
it is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or the asset is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted
from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. All other assets are classified as
non-current.

A liability is current when: it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; it is held primarily for trading; it is due to be settled
within twelve months after the reporting period; or there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period. All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are always classified as non-current.
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(d) Goods and Services Tax (“GST”) and other similar taxes

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not recoverable from the
tax authority. In this case, it is recognised as part of the cost of the acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or
payable to, the tax authority is included in other receivables or other payables in the statement of financial position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities which are
recoverable from, or payable to the tax authority, are presented as operating cash flows.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority.

(e) New, revised or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations

A number of new accounting standards are effective for the annual periods beginning after 1 January 2023, with early adoption
permitted. The Directors have reviewed all new Standards, Interpretations and amendments on issue and have determined not to early
adopt the following in preparing the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and Non-current liabilities with Covenants (Amendments to IAS 1)

The amendments made to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, as issued in 2020 and 2022, clarify that (i) a liability be classified
as current when companies do not have a substantive right to defer settlement at the end of the reporting period; and (ii) covenants
with which the company must comply after the reporting date (i.e. future covenants) do not affect a liability’s classification at that date.
The amendments apply for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

The Group has assessed that the amendments have no impact on the classification of the Group’s existing liabilities.

Supplier Finance Arrangements (Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7)

The amendments require an entity to provide additional disclosures about its supplier finance arrangements to enable users of financial
statements to assess how supplier finance arrangements affect an entity’s liabilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk. The
amendments require an entity to disclose the terms and conditions of the arrangements, the carrying amount of the liabilities that are
part of the arrangements, the carrying amounts of those liabilities for which the suppliers have already received payment from the
finance providers, the range of payment due dates and the effect of non-cash changes. The amendments apply for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

As disclosed in note 6(d), a supplier finance arrangement existed during the year, for which the new disclosures will apply. The Group
will monitor its supplier finance arrangements and compile additional information needed to meet the new disclosure requirements.

Other new Standards, Interpretations and amendments that are not yet mandatory and have not been early adopted are not expected
to have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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In the opinion of the Directors of the Company:

1. The consolidated financial statements, notes and the Remuneration report in the Directors’ report are in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001, including:

(a) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(b) giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 31 December 2023 and of its performance
for the financial year ended on that date.

2. There are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and
payable.

The Directors have been given the declarations by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer required by section 295A of
the Corporations Act 2001 for the financial year ended 31 December 2023.

The Directors draw attention to note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, which includes a statement of compliance with
International Financial Reporting Standards.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors and is signed for and on behalf of the Directors by:

John Seaberg
Chair

Dated 28 February 2024
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Inciependent Auditor's Report

To the shareholders of Anteris Technologies Ltd

Report on the audit of the Financial Report

We have audited the Financial Report of The Financial Report comprises:

Anteris Technologies Ltd (the Company).
g ( pany) Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at

In our opinion, the accompanying Financial 31 December 2023
Report of the Company is in accordance

with the Corporations Act 2001, including: Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss,

Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive

e giving a true and fair view of the Income, Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Group's financial position as at 31 Equity, and Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
December 2023 and of its financial for the year then ended

performance for the year ended on

that date’ and e Notes including a summary of material accounting

policies
e complying with Australian Accounting
Standards and the Corporations
Regulations 2001. The Group consists of the Company and the entities it
controlled at the year end or from time to time during
the financial year.

Directors’ Declaration.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the Financial Report section of our report.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical
requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards) (the Code) that are relevant to our
audit of the Financial Report in Australia. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements.

KPMG, an Australian partnership and a member firm of the KPMG global organisation of independent member firms affiliated
with KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee. All rights reserved. The KPMG name and
logo are trademarks used under license by the independent member firms of the KPMG global organisation. Liability limited by
a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislatio
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Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to Note 1(a), “Going Concern” in the financial report. The conditions disclosed in
Note 1(a), indicate a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern and, therefore, whether it will realise its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business, and at the amounts stated in the financial report. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

In concluding there is a material uncertainty related to going concern we evaluated the extent of
uncertainty regarding events or conditions casting significant doubt in the Group’s assessment of
going concern. This included:

e Analysing the cash flow projections by:

- Evaluating the underlying data used to generate the projections for consistency with other
information tested by us, our understanding of the Group’s intentions, and past results and
practices;

- Assessing the planned levels of operating and capital expenditures for feasibility, timing,
consistency of relationships and trends to the Group’s historical results, results since year
end, and our understanding of the business, industry and economic conditions of the Group.

e Assessing significant non-routine forecast cash inflows and outflows including the expected
outcome of capital raisings for feasibility, quantum and timing. We used our knowledge of the
client, its industry and current status of those initiatives to assess the level of associated
uncertainty.

e Reading minutes of Directors’ meetings and relevant correspondence with the Group's advisors
to understand the Group's ability to raise additional shareholder funds and assess the level of
associated uncertainty.

e Evaluating the Group's going concern disclosures in the financial report by comparing them to our
understanding of the matter, the events or conditions incorporated into the cash flow projection
assessment, the Group's plans to address those events or conditions, and accounting standard
requirements. We specifically focused on the principle matters giving rise to the material
uncertainty.

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the Financial Report of the current period.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial Report as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

In addition to the matter described in the Material uncertainty related to going concern section, we have
determined the matter described below to be the Key Audit Matter.
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Share based payments - $9,536,991

Refer to Note 20 of the Financial Report

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Accounting for share based payments is a key Our procedures included:

audit matter due to the: e Assessing the appropriateness of the Group’s

e Significant judgement we used to assess accounting policy for share-based payments
the market derived volatility inputs used by against the principles based criteria in AASB 2
the Group in the valuation models for Share-based Payment.

equity and cash settled options issued
under the Group's share based
compensation plans. This required the
involvement of our valuation specialists.

e Obtaining an understanding of the Group’s share
based compensation plans by inquiring with the
Group, inspecting supporting documentation and
reading a sample of underlying share option

e The Group's share based payments offers in their share based payment
expense calculation includes a number of compensation plans.
inputs such as share options granted,
vested, exercised and forfeited across
different share based compensation plans,
which increases the risk of error. This
resulted in increased audit effort. o  Working with our valuation specialists to:

e Assessing the appropriateness of the Group’s
valuation models against the requirements of the
accounting standard and industry practice.

o compare the market derived volatility inputs
used in the Group's valuation models against
publicly available market data for the Group
and comparable entities and considered
differences to the Group.

o perform an independent valuation for a
sample of share options using the volatility
inputs from procedure noted above. We
compared the valuations to those recorded
by the Group.

e For a sample of share based payments:

o compared the inputs in the share based
payments calculation used by the Group,
such as share options granted and vested to
underlying supporting documentation and the
grant date fair value calculated by the Group.

o recalculated the share-based payments
expense and compared this to the expense
recognised by the Group.

e Comparing the value of the share options
recorded by the Group in the general ledger to
the value of share options determined by the
Group's valuation models.

e Comparing the value of the share price
performance rights liability recorded by the Group
in the general ledger to the value of share price
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performance rights determined by the Group’s
valuation models.

e Assessing the disclosures in the Group's financial
report using our understanding obtained from our
testing and against the requirements of the
accounting standards.

Other Information

Other Information is financial and non-financial information in Anteris Technologies Ltd's annual report
which is provided in addition to the Financial Report and the Auditor’s Report. The Directors are
responsible for the Other Information.

Our opinion on the Financial Report does not cover the Other Information and, accordingly, we do not
express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon, with the exception of the
Remuneration Report and our related assurance opinion.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Report, our responsibility is to read the Other Information. In
doing so, we consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Report,
or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

We are required to report if we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other Information
and based on the work we have performed on the Other Information that we obtained prior to the date
of this Auditor's Report we have nothing to report.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report

The Directors are responsible for:

e preparing the Financial Report that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001

e implementing necessary internal control to enable the preparation of a Financial Report that gives
a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

e assessing the Group and Company's ability to continue as a going concern and whether the use
of the going concern basis of accounting is appropriate. This includes disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they
either intend to liquidate the Group and Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Report

Our objective is:

e 10 obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Report as a whole is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and

e toissue an Auditor’'s Report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
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Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. They are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of the Financial Report.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Report is located at the Auditing

and Assurance Standards Board website at:

https://www.auasb.gov.au/admin/file/content102/c3/ar1 2020.pdf. This description forms part of our

Auditor's Report.

Report on the Remuneration Report

Opinion

In our opinion, the Remuneration Report
of Anteris Technologies Ltd for the year
ended 31 December 2023, complies with
Section 300A of the Corporations Act
2001.

KPMG

Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and presentation of the Remuneration Report in
accordance with Section 300A of the Corporations Act
2001.

Our responsibilities

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in
pages 8 to 16 of the Directors’ report for the year ended 31
December 2023.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

4

Stephen Board
Partner

Brisbane
28 February 2024
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